
 

To sensitively manage the natural resources entrusted to our care, to provide the people of Montara - Moss Beach with reliable, high – 
quality water, wastewater, and trash disposal at an equitable price, and to ensure the fiscal and environmental vitality of the district for 
future generations. Be open to providing other services desired by our community. 

 

AGENDA 
District Board of Directors 

8888 Cabrillo Highway  

Montara, California 94037 

January 17, 2019 at 7:30 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL 
PRESIDENT’S STATEMENT 
ORAL COMMENTS (Items other than those on the agenda) 

PUBLIC HEARING  

 
1. Review and Possible Action Concerning Establishment of Prop 218 Limits for Solid 

Waste Disposal Fee Increase, January 1, 2019. 

2. Review and Possible Action Concerning Adoption of a Revised Master Fee Schedule to 

amend Solid Waste Disposal Fees. 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/Public_Hearing_1.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/Public_Hearing_1.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/Public_Hearing_2.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/Public_Hearing_2.pdf


1. Approve Minutes for December 6, 2018. 
2. Approve Financial Statements for November 2018.  
3. Approve Warrants for January 1, 2019. 
4. SAM Flow Report for November. 
5. Monthly Review of Current Investment Portfolio. 
6. Connection Permit Applications Received.  
7. Monthly Water Production Report for October 2018.  
8. Rain Report.  
9. Solar Energy Report.  
10. Monthly Public Agency Retirement Service Report for September 2018. 

 
OLD BUSINESS 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. Review and Possible Action Concerning Certification of the Results of the November 

6, 2018 Statewide General Election. 
2. Review and Possible Action Concerning the Administration of the Oath of Office to 

the Newly Elected Board Members. 
3. Review and Possible Action Concerning Appointments of Board Officers and 

Committee Assignments for 2019. 
4. Review and Response to Resident Questions about Fire Flow. 
5. Review and Possible Action Concerning Adoption of Connection Charge Report. 
6. Review of Half Moon Bay Terrace Groundwater Basin SGMA Prioritization.  
7. Review and Possible Action Concerning Nomination of Representative for ACWA 

Region 5 Board. 

REPORTS 

1. Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside Meetings (Boyd) 
2. MidCoast Community Council Meeting (Slater-Carter) 
3. CSDA Report (Slater-Carter) 
4. Attorney’s Report (Schricker) 
5. Directors’ Reports 
6. General Manager’s Report (Heldmaier) 

FUTURE AGENDAS 

ADJOURNMENT 

CONVENE IN CLOSED SESSION 

REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION, IF ANY 
ADJOURNMENT 

The District has a curfew of 11:00 p.m. for all meetings. The meeting may 
be extended for one hour by vote of the Board. 

http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/Consent_1.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/Consent_2.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/Consent_4.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/Consent_5.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/Consent_6.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/Consent_7.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/Consent_8.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/Consent_9.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/Consent_10.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/New_Business_1.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/New_Business_1.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/New_Business_2.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/New_Business_2.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/New_Business_3.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/New_Business_3.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/New_Business_4.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/New_Business_5.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/New_Business_6.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/New_Business_7.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/131/New_Business_7.pdf


NOTE: In accordance with the Government Code, members of the public may address the Board 
on specific agenda items when the matter is discussed by the Board. Any other items of interest that 
is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the District may be addressed during the Oral Comments 
portion of the meeting. Upon request, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative 
formats to persons with a disability. Request for a disability-related modification or accommodation 
in order to participate in the public meeting should be made at (650) 728-3545. Materials related to 
an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the Agenda Packet are available 
in the District Clerk’s office during normal business hours. Such documents may also be available 
on the District’s web site (www.mwsd.montara.org) subject to staff’s ability to post the documents 
before the meeting. 

http://www.mwsd.montara.org/


M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  January 17, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 
  

SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning 
Establishment of Prop 218 Limits for Solid Waste 
Disposal Fee Increase. 

The franchise agreement with Recology of the Coast requires the District to 
annually assess the solid waste disposal rates by January 1 in accordance with an 
agreed upon formula. Pursuant to the franchise agreement, Recology of the Coast 
provided calculations required for the rate increase effective January 1, 2019.  In 
accordance to the agreement, the current increase is based on cost, the following 
two years cost assessment will be based on index.  
 
The formula would result results in a 12.14% rate increase over the 2018 rates. 
However, cost increases are capped per contract at 6%. Labor costs (Salaries, 
benefits and pension costs) increased from $625,572 to $673,878 or 7.72%. Fuel 
costs – increased by 17.57%. In total, operational costs increased 24.54%. Main 
reason for the operational cost increase is the change from Recology receiving 
revenue for some recycling goods to Recology currently having to pay for all 
recycling.  
                                                                                                                                              
Notices were mailed in November, 2018 to all 1736 property owners and 
customers in Montara and Moss Beach notifying them about the planned rate 
increase for January 1, 2019. At the preparation of this agenda item a total of three 
(3) written protests have been received.  However, a full final count will be made 
at the public hearing since more may be received by that time. 
 
The purpose of this meeting is to formally count the number of written protests 
received.  If written protests are submitted against the proposed fees or against a 
particular fee by the owners of a majority of the parcels, the fees or fee will not 
become effective. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Open the public hearing, allow relevant testimony, close the public hearing and 
count all allowable Prop 218 protests received.  Determine whether or not the 
proposed rate limits should be approved in accordance with Prop 218. Adopt 
ORDINANCE NO.____, ORDINANCE OF THE MONTARA WATER AND 
SANITARY DISTRICT ESTABLISHING MAXIMUM RATES FOR THE 
COLLECTION, REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF REFUSE AND FOR RECYCLING 
SERVICES EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2019. 
Attachments 



 

1 
Ord___Prop218SolidWsteMaxRatesEff010119[011719] 

O R D I N AN C E  N O . _ _ _ _  

ORDINANCE OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICT 
ESTABLISHING MAXIMUM RATES FOR THE COLLECTION, REMOVAL AND 
DISPOSAL OF REFUSE AND FOR RECYCLING SERVICES EFFECTIVE 
JANUARY 1, 2019 

THE BOARD OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICT, A 

PUBLIC AGENCY IN THE COUNTY OF SAN MATEO, CALIFORNIA, DOES ORDAIN 

AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Findings. The Board of the Montara Water and Sanitary District 

hereby finds and declares that: 

a. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 6 of Article XIII D of the California 

Constitution, this Board adopted Ordinance No. 178, which established maximum rates 

to be charged by Recology of the Coast (“Recology”), the District's franchisee for the 

collection, removal and disposal of refuse and for recycling services (“Solid Waste 

Services”) for properties within the District commencing January 1, 2016. 

b. The franchise provides for annual revisions to the schedule of fees and 

charges for the Solid Waste Services.  

c. The schedule of maximum fees and charges hereinafter approved and 

adopted implement the intention of the parties to the franchise to provide compensation 

to Recology corresponding to costs of providing such Services. 

d. The parcels upon which the proposed fees or charges for Solid Waste 

Services were identified and the amount of such fee or charge was calculated, and the 

District provided written notice by mail of the proposed fee or charge to the record 

owners of each identified parcel, the amount of the fee or charge, the basis upon which 

the amount of the fee or charge was calculated, the reason for the fee or charge, 

together with the date, time, and location of the public hearing on the proposed fees or 

charges in accordance with the provisions of Section 6 of Article XIII D of the California 

Constitution. 

e. In addition to the aforesaid notice, notice of said public hearing was published 

not less than twice, with at least five (5) days intervening between the dates of the first 

and last publication, in a newspaper of general circulation regularly published once a 

week or more often within the County of San Mateo. 



 

2 
Ord___Prop218SolidWsteMaxRatesEff010119[011719] 

f.  On January 17, 2019, not less than 45 days after mailing of the aforesaid notice, 

a public hearing on the proposed fees and charges set forth herein for the Solid Waste 

Services for all occupied premises (except agricultural premises) was held by this Board 

and all persons present at the hearing and interested in the matter were heard or given 

the opportunity to be heard on the question of enactment of said fees and charges. 

g. This Board considered all protests against the proposed fees or charges for 

said Solid Waste Services and written protests against said fees or charges were not 

presented by a majority of owners of the identified parcels. 

h. Revenues to be received from the fees and charges for the Solid Waste Services 

for all occupied premises (except agricultural premises) set forth herein do not exceed the 

funds required to provide such Services, nor do they exceed the proportional cost of the 

Services attributable to the aforesaid parcels, and the revenues from said fees and charges 

shall not be used for any other purpose than that for which the fees and charges are 

imposed. 

i. The fees and charges enacted by this ordinance are maximums for each 

corresponding rate component listed herein. 

 Section 2. Refuse collection and recycling rates and charges. 

 a. The maximum monthly rates to be charged by the District’s franchisee for the 

collection, removal, and disposal of refuse for all occupied premises (except agricultural  

premises) and recycling services within the District commencing on January 1, 2019 and 

until thereafter revised are: 

   

                                            RESIDENTIAL   

1. Weekly collection, single container placed in front of premises, wet and dry  

garbage ("first can service") in wheeled carts:   

 a. Container limits: volume - 20 gals. (3/10 cu yd),weight 40 lbs, per mo charge $25.26  

 b. Container limits: volume - 32 gals (1/4 cu yd),   weight 60 lbs, per mo charge $31.07  

 c. Container limits: volume - 64 gals (1/2 cu yd),  weight 100 lbs, per mo charge $102.06  

   

2. Special Services (charges added to above, basic changes):   

 a. Container placed at side or rear of dwelling - per container  
 

       $7.76 

 b. Container not placed at specified collection point and return call required- $15.83 

per container   

c. Extra 30 gallon bag with collection (excludes 20 gallon cart service), per bag $8.38 

d. Special collections combined with regular service, including collections for estimate 



 

3 
Ord___Prop218SolidWsteMaxRatesEff010119[011719] 

brush, yard clippings, boxes, etc.   

   

3. Bulky goods dropoff service four times a year within Montara District limits incl. w/service 

including greenwaste and motor oil in Recology-provided bottles only   

   

4. Weekly commingled recyclable materials collection (64 gallon wheeled cart) incl. w/service 

   

5. Every other week greenwaste (yard trimmings, etc.) collection, limited to four incl. w/service 

(4) thirty gallon containers - customers own containers   

   

6. Bulky goods curbside collection service, limited to four (4) times a year incl. w/service 

One item up to 200 lbs or 5-30 gallon bags   

   

7. Dropoff at Recycling yard in Pacifica of motor oil, latex paint, unpainted lumber, incl. w/service 

large pieces of metal, styrofoam, e-waste, large white goods, furniture, mattresses, 

large amounts of recyclable materials   

   

8. Christmas trees free of charge through January 31st of each year  incl. w/service 

a. After January 31st charge is $20 per tree for removal  $20.00 

   

          MULTIFAMILY, COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL SERVICE   

1. Service to restaurants, hotels, cafes, apartment houses, stores and similar  

places of business, factories, schools and institutions, wet and dry garbage-  

container limits: volume - 30 gal. cans (1/4 cu. Yd), weight - 75 lbs   

 a. Regular collections:   
 1-64 gallon collection once per week                                    
 1-96 gallon collection once per week  

$122.56 
$200.55 

   

 b. Additional 64 or 96 gallon commercial carts picked up more than once a week     
will be original charge times the number of pickups 

Will vary by 
size  

2. Commercial Container Rental:   

 a. 1 cubic yard box - per mo.  $55.76 

 b. 2 cubic yard box - per mo.  $72.29  

   

3. Commercial Container Collections:   

 a. 1 cubic yard box - per collection  $47.12 

 b. 2 cubic yard box - per collection  $93.75  

   

4. Compacted Commercial Container Service:   

 a. 1 cubic yard box - per collection  $91.97  

 b. 2 cubic yard box - per collection  $185.78  

   

5. Recyclable material collection  up to five times a week        incl. w/service 



 

4 
Ord___Prop218SolidWsteMaxRatesEff010119[011719] 

 
                                          DEBRIS BOX SERVICE 

 
7, 14, 20 and 30 yard containers 
a. Container rental, delivery and pickup charge                                                       
b. $67 per ton confirmed by disposal site weight slip 

  

   

  

 
       $370.39 
Tonnage based 

   

                                          SPECIAL PROVISIONS   

1.  Financial hardship rate for weekly collection for single container placed in front of  
premises, wet and dry garbage 30 gallon can (PGE CARE PROGRAM)  15% 
reduction                                                              

 $25.56 

 

b. The rates and charges hereby established are maximums for the listed rate 

components. Rates and charges equal to or less than said maximums may be enacted from 

time to time by separate ordinance including, without limitation, by ordinance amending, 

supplementing or restating the District's Master Fee Schedule; provided, that the last rate or 

charge or rates or charges so enacted shall remain in full force and effect until superseded by 

a subsequent enactment, likewise equal to, or less than, said maximums, such that said rates 

and charges shall in no event revert to the schedule of rates and charges in effect prior to 

enactment of the above rates and charges or to a lower rate than the last rate enacted pursuant 

hereto. Nothing herein contained shall be deemed a limitation upon the District to enact rates 

and charges superseding the maximum rates and charges hereby established; provided that 

such superseding rates and charges shall have been enacted in accordance with all legal 

requirements pertaining thereto. 

Section 3. Effective, Operative Date. Upon adoption, this Ordinance shall be 

entered in the minutes of the Board and posted for one week in three (3) public places in 

the District, shall become effective immediately upon expiration of one week following said 

posting and shall be operative from and after January 1, 2019. 

 

 

          ________________________ 

                   President  

COUNTERSIGNED: ____________________ 

       Secretary  

 



 

5 
Ord___Prop218SolidWsteMaxRatesEff010119[011719] 

 

 

************ 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance was duly and regularly passed 

and adopted by the Board of the Montara Water and Sanitary District, San Mateo 

County, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 17th  Day of January 2019, 

by the following vote : 

AYES, and in favor thereof, Directors:  
  
             
            NOES, Directors: 
 
 ABSENT, Directors: 
 
 
    
         __________________ 
          Secretary  



Montara Water & Sanitary District
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED  
INCREASES TO GARBAGE COLLECTION,  
RECYCLING AND DISPOSAL FEES AND CHARGES

This Notice provides information 
about proposed increases in  
garbage collection, recycling and 
disposal fees and charges for those 
services provided by Recology of 
the Coast to MWSD customers.

PLEASE CONTACT US IF YOU HAVE QUESTIONS OR COMMENTS 
Tel: (650) 728-3545  •  Email:  mwsd@coastside.net  •  Write: P.O. Box 370131 Montara, CA 94037-0131

HEARING DATE:  Thursday, January 17, 2019
HEARING TIME:  7:30 p.m.
LOCATION:  Montara Water and Sanitary District  
 8888 Cabrillo Highway
 Montara, CA 94037  
 (Adjacent to the Point Montara Lighthouse & Hostel)

Dear Property Owner or Customer, 

Montara Water and Sanitary District (MWSD) is proposing to adopt a 6% increase in garbage collection,  
recycling and disposal fees and charges for those services furnished by Recology of the Coast (Recology) 
under a franchise agreement with the District. The rates are proposed to go into effect on January 1, 2019. 
Please review this document for more information about the proposed changes.

What Do the Solid Waste Fees and Charges Pay for?
• On-going operating expenses of Recology of the Coast to collect and dispose of all garbage and  

recyclable material and to account for and bill customers.

• On-going expenses for equipment and supplies needed to operate the company.

• Capital expenditures to repair, replace, and upgrade garbage collection trucks and other equipment.

• Domestic recycling costs associated with global shifts in the recycling market.

• Tipping fees (also called dump fees) at Ox Mountain Landfill in Half Moon Bay to dispose of all  
non-recycled waste. 

How Can Customers Reduce Garbage Collection Fees and Charges?
By switching from a 32-gallon garbage collection receptacle to a 20-gallon receptacle, your new monthly collection fee 
charge would be $25.26 instead of $31.07.

To Help Fit Your Trash into a Smaller Bin, Take Advantage of Free Bulky Goods Collection. Four times a year, Recology will 
pick up one item up to 200 pounds or five 30-gallon bags for no additional charge. By accumulating and disposing of extra 
items four times a year, customers may be able to go down to a 20-gallon container and save money. 

By Increasing Recycling and Reducing Garbage, MWSD Customers May Reduce Future Increases on Their Bills.  
A majority of Pacifica residents have realized a savings in their collection charges by switching to the 20-gallon cans.  
Currently in the MWSD service area, only a small percentage of customers use 20-gallon cans. 



Proposed Garbage Collection, Recycling and Disposal Fees
The District is proposing an increase to garbage collection, recycling and disposal fees to cover costs of service and equipment replacement by Recology of the Coast beginning Jan. 1, 2019, as described on these pages.

Note: Although the rates are proposed to cover a one-year period, they  
will remain in effect after that year unless and until new rates are approved.

Please Take Advantage 
of the Many Services 
Included with Your  
Garbage Fees

To Estimate Your 
Monthly Bill Add Up 
the Services You Use. 

Most residential cus- 
tomers only use Weekly 
collection for a 32-gallon 
can, which would be 
$31.07 per month  
starting January 1, 2019. 

How to Protest the  
Proposed Rate Increases
Property owners or custom-
ers may file written protests 
against the proposed rate 
increases. Pursuant to California 
law, protests must be submit-
ted in writing and must a) iden-
tify the affected property or 
properties, such as by address, 
Assessor’s Parcel Number, or 
customer account number; b) 
include the name and signature 
of the customer or property 
owner submitting the protest; 
and c) indicate opposition to 
the proposed garbage collec-
tion, recycling, and disposal 
fees and charges. Protests 
submitted by e-mail, facsimile, 
or other electronic means will 
not be accepted. The proposed 
rates will not be adopted if 
written protests are received 
from the owners or customers 
representing a majority of  
affected parcels. Only one  
protest accepted per parcel.

Written protests may be mailed 
to: District Clerk, Montara Water 
and Sanitary District, P.O. Box 
370131, Montara, CA 94037-
0131. Written protests may also 
be delivered to the District’s 
headquarters at 8888 Cabrillo 
Highway. All written protests 
must be submitted prior to the 
close of the Public Hearing on 
January 17, 2019.

RESIDENTIAL 2018 2019

1.  Basic, weekly collection of a single container 
placed in front of premises, wet and dry  
garbage (“first can service”) in wheeled carts:

 One 20-gallon can collected once per week $23.83 $25.26
 One 32-gallon can collected once per week $29.31 $31.07
 One 64-gallon can collected once per week $96.28 $102.06

2.  Special Services (charges added to above,  
basic charges)

 Container placed at side or rear of dwelling -  
per container $7.32 $7.76

 Container not placed at specified collection point 
and return call required – per container $14.93 $15.83

 Extra 30 gallon bag with collection (excludes 
20-gallon cart service) – per bag $7.91 $8.38

 Special collections combined with regular service, 
including collections for brush, yard clippings, 
boxes, etc.

Estimate Estimate

3.  Bulky goods dropoff service four times a  
year within Montara District limits, including 
greenwaste and motor oil in Recology provided 
bottles only

Included 
w/service

Included 
w/service

4.  Weekly commingled recyclable materials 
 collection (64 gallon wheeled cart)

Included 
w/service

Included 
w/service

5.  Every other week green waste (yard trimmings, 
etc.) collection, limited to four (4) 30-gallon 
containers – customers’ own containers

Included 
w/service

Included 
w/service

6.  Bulky goods curbside collection service, limited 
to four (4) times a year One item up to 200 lbs or 
five, 30-gallon bags

Included 
w/service

Included 
w/service

7. Drop-off at Recycling Yard in Pacifica of motor 
oil, latex and oil paint, unpainted lumber, large 
pieces of metal, styrofoam, e-waste, large white  
goods, furniture, mattresses, large amounts  
of recyclable materials

Included 
w/service

Included 
w/service

8.  Christmas trees free of charge thru January 31st Included 
w/service

Included 
w/service

 After January 31st charge is $20 per tree for removal $20.00 $20.00

MULTI-FAMILY, COMMERCIAL AND  
INDUSTRIAL SERVICE 2018 2019

1. Service to restaurants, hotels, cafes, apartment 
houses, stores and similar places of business, 
factories, schools and institutions, wet and dry 
garbage-container limits: volume – 30-gal. cans 
(1/4 cu. Yd.), weight - 75 lbs.

 One 64-gallon can collected once per week $115.62 $122.56
 One 96-gallon can collected once per week $189.20 $200.55
 Additional 64- or 96-gallon commercial carts 

picked up more than once a week will be original 
charge times the number of pickups

Will Vary Will Vary

2.  Commercial Container Rental
 1 cubic yard box per month $52.60 $55.76
 2 cubic yard box per month $68.20 $72.29

3.  Commercial Container Collections
 1 cubic yard box per collection $44.45 $47.12
 2 cubic yard box per collection $88.44 $93.75

4.  Compacted Commercial Container Service
 1 cubic yard box per collection $86.76 $91.97
 2 cubic yard box per collection $175.26 $185.78

5.  Recycled materials collection up to five times  
a week

Included 
w/service

Included 
w/service

DEBRIS BOX SERVICE 2018 2019

1.  Containers of 7, 14, 20 and 30 yard sizes
 Container rental and delivery and pickup charge $349.42 $370.39
 $80 per ton confirmed by disposal site weight slip $67.00 $71.00

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 2018 2019

1.  Financial hardship rate for weekly collection  
for single container placed in front of premises, 
wet and dry garbage 30-gallon can (PGE CARE 
PROGRAM) 15% reduction

$24.96 $25.56



P.O. Box 370131
Montara, CA 94037
Voice: 650-728-3545
Email: mwsd@coastside.net
Web: mwsd.montara.org

DIRECTORS
Dwight Wilson, President
Scott Boyd, President Pro Tem 
Bill Huber, Treasurer
Kathryn Slater-Carter, Secretary
Jim Harvey, Director

GENERAL MANAGER
Clemens Heldmaier 

QUESTIONS OR COMMENTS?
If you have questions or  
comments, please:

Call: the District office at  
(650) 728-3545 from  
8:30 AM to 5:00 PM

Email: mwsd@coastside.net

Write: PO Box 370131,  
Montara, CA 94037

Web: Check our website  
for additional details.  
www.mwsd.montara.org

Participate: In the Public Hearing 
on Thursday, January 17, 2019 at 
7:30 PM at:

Montara Water and  
Sanitary District
8888 Cabrillo Highway, Montara, 
CA 94037  (Adjacent to the Point 
Montara Lighthouse & Hostel)

Charges Will Remain Below Average
Even with the proposed fees and charges, rates in the Montara service 
area will remain below average in San Mateo County.

This is despite the fact that this is a costly area to serve due to the  
distance between customers as well as the winding, steep roads and 
long driveways. These conditions make it impractical to use modern 
trucks with mechanized arms to pick up the containers. Instead, most 
cans must be hand lifted and dumped—requiring extra staff and  
collection time.

The District will audit costs to ensure they are appropriate and to keep 
long-term garbage service quality up and bills as low as reasonably  
possible for customers.

Reasons for the Rate Increases:
The rate revisions are based on a comprehensive Rate Adjustment 
Schedule included in Recology’s franchise that takes into consideration 
documented labor costs, workers compensation insurance premiums, 
vehicle-related costs, fuel costs, yard-waste processing costs, lease costs 
associated with vehicles and equipment, dump fees (also called tipping 
fees) charged at the Ox Mountain Landfill in Half Moon Bay and all other 
costs of providing quality garbage and recycling services. 

Montara Water & Sanitary District – NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED  
INCREASES IN GARBAGE COLLECTION, RECYCLING AND DISPOSAL FEES AND CHARGES

This was mailed using a legally mandated list. If you 
receive multiple copies, or do not receive service from 
Recology and received this in error, we apologize.

PRSRT STD
U.S. POSTAGE

PAID 
UNICORN GROUP 









M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  January 17, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 
  

SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning 
Adoption of a Revised Master Fee Schedule to 
amend Solid Waste Disposal Fees. 

 
 
The Board has scheduled the adoption of a new prop 218 limit for solid waste 
removal fees at this meeting. For the new rates to be set at the newly established 
maximum prop 218 limit, the Master Fee Schedule needs to be amended.  
 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Open the public hearing, consider relevant public testimony, close the public 
hearing, and ADOPT ORDINANCE NO.____________. ORDINANCE OF THE 
MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICT RESTATING AND AMENDING 
MASTER FEE SCHEDULE. 
 
 
Attachment 
 



O R D I N A N C E  NO. ___ 
 

 ORDINANCE OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT RESTATING AND AMENDING MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

1 
MasterFeeScheduleEff010119[011719] 

 WHEREAS, the Montara Water and Sanitary District Code (“Code”) includes 
regulations governing connections to and use of the District’s water and sewerage 
facilities, the construction, operation and maintenance thereof and for the 
establishment and collection of all fees and charges pertaining thereto; and 
 
 WHEREAS,  the Code further provides for the establishment and collection 
of monthly rates to be charged for the collection, removal, and disposal of refuse 
and for recycling services performed by the District’s franchisee under agreement 
with the District; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Code provides that such fees and charges may be set forth 
in a Master Fee Schedule; and 
 
 WHEREAS, periodically such fees and charges are reviewed and adjusted to 
conform to the costs corresponding to the services, commodities and facilities to 
which they pertain; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the fees and charges pertaining to water and sewer services and 
facilities set forth herein and for the collection, removal, and disposal of refuse for all 
occupied premises (except agricultural premises) and recycling services within the 
District do not exceed the corresponding maximum amounts heretofore approved in 
accordance with the requirements of law including, to the extent applicable, the 
provisions of Section 6 of Article XIII D of the California Constitution (enacted by 
Proposition 218, November 6, 1996 Statewide election); and  

 
WHEREAS, the fees and charges pertaining to the collection, removal, and 

disposal of refuse for all occupied premises (except agricultural premises) and 
recycling services set forth herein are hereby amended; and  

 
WHEREAS,  the fees and charges pertaining to water and sewer services 

and facilities are hereby restated; and  
 

WHEREAS, notice was published twice in the Half Moon Bay Review, a 
newspaper of general circulation within the District, giving notice of public hearing 
on January 17, 2019 to consider adoption of revised fees or charges effective 
January 1, 2019 for the collection, removal, and disposal of refuse for all occupied 
premises (except agricultural premises) and recycling services; and  

 
WHEREAS, all persons present at the aforesaid hearing interested in the 

adoption of the revised fees or charges herein set forth were heard or given the 
opportunity to be heard on the matter of said adoption and this Board considered all 
statements so made or documents pertaining thereto presented at the hearing;  

 
  



O R D I N A N C E  NO. ___ 
 

 ORDINANCE OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT RESTATING AND AMENDING MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

2 
MasterFeeScheduleEff010119[011719] 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF THE MONTARA WATER AND 
SANITARY DISTRICT, A PUBLIC AGENCY IN THE COUNTY OF SAN MATEO, 
CALIFORNIA, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  The following provisions of the Master Fee Schedule are hereby 
restated: 
 
SEWER SERVICE CHARGE RATES  
 
The annual sewer service charge for the property occupancy classifications 
specified hereinafter is hereby established as an amount equal to the applicable rate 
hereinafter specified times the cubic feet of water consumption attributable to such 
property per annum divided by one hundred (MWSD Code §4-2.100). 
 
Classification Rate/HCF*             Minimum Charge 
 
Residential                 $17.41 $835.68 
    
Restaurants               $30.21 $1,450.08 
    
Motels                        $18.33     $879.84 
   
Offices                       $15.69                      $753.12 
 
General  
Commercial              $16.80                      $806.40 
   
All other  
Commercial                $18.14                     $870.72 

  
Schools                      $15.93                      $764.64 
   
Hospitals                    $17.36                      $833.28 
   

*Hundred cubic feet 
 
Upon a new connection to the District’s sewerage system, the applicant shall pay 
the pro-rated amount of sewer service charges for the remainder of the fiscal year 
in which connection is made based upon the average annual sewer service charge 
of all users within the applicant’s user classification. 
(MWSD Code §4-2.100(f)) 
 
 SECTION 2.  The following provisions of the Master Fee Schedule are hereby 
restated: 
 



O R D I N A N C E  NO. ___ 
 

 ORDINANCE OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT RESTATING AND AMENDING MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

3 
MasterFeeScheduleEff010119[011719] 

Description of Fee*     Fee 
 

Sewer Connection Permit                                  $25,434.00 
(MWSD Code §3-9.500)     
 
Fixture Unit Charge                                            $1,017.00 
(MWSD Code §3-9.500)     

  
 Fixture Unit Charge for                                        $508.50 
 additional Fixture Units  

within an existing building,  
structure, or portion thereof 

 (MWSD Code §3-9.500) 
 

 Sewer Connection Permit for    $16,158.00 
Conversion from Septic System to  
Sewerage System 
(MWSD Code §§3-4.800, 3-9.500) 
   
Fixture Unit Charge – Conversion from   $646.00 
Septic System to Sewerage System 
(MWSD Code §§3-4.800, 3-9.500)   
       
Fixture Unit Charge for Accessory                     $646.00 
Dwelling Units 
(MWSD Code §3-10.200) 
    
Connection Permit Administrative   Actual Cost 
Fee       ($521.00 minimum) 
(MWSD Code §3-9.600,) 
 
Connection Permit Inspection Fee  Actual Cost 
(MWSD Code §3-9.600,)    ($492.00 minimum) 
 
Remodel Permit Fee    Actual Cost 
(MWSD Code §3-9.500)    ($365.00 minimum) 
 
Private Sewer System Permit   Actual Cost 
(MWSD Code §3-4.200,)    ($168.00 minimum) 

 
 Private Sewer System    Actual Cost 
 Hydrologic Investigation    ($2,878.00 minimum) 
 (MWSD Code §3-4.1200 (c)) 
 
 Connection Permit Administrative   Actual Cost 



O R D I N A N C E  NO. ___ 
 

 ORDINANCE OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT RESTATING AND AMENDING MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

4 
MasterFeeScheduleEff010119[011719] 

 Fee - Subdivisions & Commercial   ($521.00 minimum) 
 Units  

(MWSD Code §3-9.600) 
  

Connection Permit Inspection Fee -   Actual Cost 
 Subdivisions & Commercial Units   ($496.00 minimum) 
 (MWSD Code §3-9.600,) 
 
 Administrative Fee for Reimbursement  Actual Cost 
 Agreement      ($521.00 minimum) 
 (MWSD Code §3-9.500) 
  

Administrative Fee for Main Line    Actual Cost 
 Extension Agreement    ($521.00 minimum) 
 (MWSD Code §3-9.500)    
  
 Connection Fee to Connect to   Prorata share of current  
 Interceptor      value of interceptor 
 (MWSD Code §3-9.500)         
  
 Miscellaneous Inspection Fee   Actual Cost 
 (MWSD Code §3-9.500)    ($496.00 minimum) 
 
 Accessory Dwelling Unit                                     n.c. 
           contained within the existing space 

of a single-family residence or  
accessory structure – no connection fee  

  
Accessory Dwelling Unit                     $9,967.00 

 not within the existing space of a  
 single-family residence or accessory  
 structure – Detached Studio Unit  
          (10 fixture units) connection fee:                   
          (MWSD Code §3-10.200) 
 
 Accessory Dwelling Unit     $10,965.00         
 not within the existing space of a  
 single-family residence or accessory  
 structure – Detached One Bedroom Unit (11  
 fixture units):        
 (MWSD Code §3-10.200)  
      
 Accessory Dwelling Unit      $997.00 
 Additional Fixture Units:  
 (MWSD Code §3-10.200)      



O R D I N A N C E  NO. ___ 
 

 ORDINANCE OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT RESTATING AND AMENDING MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

5 
MasterFeeScheduleEff010119[011719] 

  
 Accessory Dwelling Unit Permit                          Actual Cost 
           Application Fee                                 ($521.00 minimum) 
 (MWSD Code §3-10.400) 
 

Developer Service Fee                                       Actual Cost  
for processing application:              ($2,825.00 minimum) 
(MWSD Code §§5-3.102, 5-3.210)     
           
Administrative Charge for Processing  $45.00 per account 
Collection of Delinquent Refuse and Water  
Charges on Tax Roll  
(MWSD Code §1-5.200) 

    
Charge to Photocopy Documents   $1.50 per page for first four 
       pages; $0.38 for each page  
       over four. 
 
Charge for Failure to Obtain Permit  Double amount of Permit  
(MWSD Code §1-5.200)              Fee or actual collection cost, 

whichever is greater  
  

           
*Where minimums or deposits are specified, no District services will be  

provided when the estimated costs to complete the services exceed the minimum paid or 
when the deposit has been exhausted unless and until an amount equal to the estimated 
cost for completion has been deposited with the District. Balances remaining upon 
completion of services will be refunded  

 
 SECTION 3.  The following provisions of the Master Fee Schedule are hereby 
restated: 
 
(a) WATER QUANTITY AND METER SERVICE CHARGES  
    (MWSD Code §§ 5-5.102, 103) 

 

Rate Components 
 

Rate**  
 

Tier 1  
0 to 6 HCF* 

$8.36 per HCF 

Tier 2  
7 – 13 HCF 

$11.15  per HCF 

Tier 3  
14 – 27 HCF 

$13.95  per HCF 



O R D I N A N C E  NO. ___ 
 

 ORDINANCE OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT RESTATING AND AMENDING MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

6 
MasterFeeScheduleEff010119[011719] 

Tier 4  
over 27 HCF 
 

$19.53 per HCF 
 

  

Meter Service Charge-5/8” 
(standard residential size) 
 

$28.80 per month 

Meter Service Charge-3/4” 
 

$31.68 per month 

Meter Service Charge-1” 
 

$40.32 per month 

Meter Service Charge-1 ½” 
 

$51.84 per month 
 

Meter Service Charge-2” 
 

$83.52 per month 

Meter Service Charge-3” 
 

$316.82 per month 

Meter Service Charge-4” 
 

$403.22 per month 

 
*HCF=Hundred Cubic Feet (1 cubic foot ≈ 7.4805 gal.; 1 HCF = 748 gal.) 

 
(b) FIRE PROTECTION WATER SYSTEM CHARGES 
 
Private Fire Protection Service Per Meter Per Month:  
(MWSD Code §5-5.106) 
 
4-inch connection or smaller:    $17.37  
6-inch connection:      $24.64 
8-inch connection:      $32.84    
10-inch connection:      $69.20 
12-inch connection:      $96.57 
  
Private Fire Protection Administrative Fee:*                 $521.00 minimum  
(MWSD Code §5-3.208) 
 
Installation of Private Fire Protection             Cost invoiced to District by 
Service from Meter to District Main:*            contractor; estimated cost  
(MWSD Code §5-5.204)                                              to be deposited  
      
Private Fire Protection Connection Charge:  
3/4” to 5/8” meter:                                                         $5,213.00 
1” meter:                                                                 $8,706.00 
1½ “ meter:                                                                   $17,357.00 



O R D I N A N C E  NO. ___ 
 

 ORDINANCE OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT RESTATING AND AMENDING MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

7 
MasterFeeScheduleEff010119[011719] 

2” meter:                                                                       $27,784.00 
3” meter:                                                                       $52,125.00 
4” meter:                                                                       $86,898.00 
6” meter:                                                                       $144,850.00 
8” meter:                                                                       $241,468.00 
10” meter                                            :                         $402,525.00 
(MWSD Code §5-3.208) 
 
Private Fire Protection Inspection Fee*                        $496.00 
(MWSD Code §5-3.210) 
 
(c) WATER SYSTEM CONNECTION METER CHARGES 
     (MWSD Code §§5-3.204, 5-3.205) 

 
Charge determined by District’s cost of purchase corresponding to meter size. 
 
(d) WATER SYSTEM CONNECTION CAPACITY CHARGES 
     (MWSD Code §5-3.312) 
 

5/8 x 3/4 inch meter              $17,457.00  
3/4 inch meter              $19,203.00  
1 inch meter              $24,439.00  
1-1/2 inch meter              $31,426.00  
2 inch meter              $50,625.00  
3 inch meter              $192,026.00  
4 inch meter              $244,398.00  

 
Above 4 inch meter:                                                     Charge determined by 
                                                                                     General Manager based on    
                                                                                     estimated water usage    
     

(e)  MISCELLANEOUS WATER SYSTEM SERVICE FEES:* 
 

      Check not honored by bank:                                   $30.00 
      (MWSD Code §§1-5.200, 5-5.122) 

 
      Poor credit history deposit:                                      Twice estimated first                                                     
      (MWSD Code §§1-5.200, 5-3.210)              payment 

 
 

      Reconnection Charge due to Non-Payment:           $72.00 
      (MWSD Code §§5-3.210, 5-5.120) 

 
 
 



O R D I N A N C E  NO. ___ 
 

 ORDINANCE OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT RESTATING AND AMENDING MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

8 
MasterFeeScheduleEff010119[011719] 

      Developer Service Fee against which all                $2,825.00 minimum                                                  
      District costs to process application are                  deposit 

charged  
(MWSD Code §§5-3.102, 5-3.210)                                                                                       
     

       Hydrant Meter Deposit against which                     $1,277.00     
       water use is charged:                                              deposit 
      (MWSD Code §5-4.227) 

 
      Hydrant Test Fee      $570.00 
      (MWSD Code §§5-3.208, 5-5.202)                                          
 
      Connection Administrative Fee (minimum 

deposit applied to actual hourly costs to 
      process application) 
      (MWSD Code §§5-3.202, 5-3.203) 
 

       $521.00 
        minimum deposit 
                            

       Connection Inspection Fee 
       (MWSD Code §5-3.210) 
 

                  $496.00  
 

           Connection construction cost    
deposit applied to actual cost                                                                        

                  $2,825.00 deposit 
                                       

      (MWSD Code §§5-3.202, 5-3.203) 
 
     Service Charge for Posting Door Tag                     $33.00 per customer      
     for Delinquent Account                                             per incident 
     (MWSD Code §§1-5.200, 5-3.210)                                          

    
Credit for Customer paying bill using ACH:             $3.31 per bill 

 (MWSD Code §5-3.200) 
 

Service Charge for Unauthorized Use of Fire           $151.00 per incident             
Hydrant (Total charge includes Service Charge       plus actual water usage 
plus water usage plus damages).                             & damages 
(MWSD Code §5-5.202)                                                           

             
 Service Charge for Cross Connection Control          $114.00 per tested device 

        Device Test:                                                              
      (MWSD Code §5-6.400)                                                 

        . 
*Where minimums or deposits are specified, no District services will be  
provided when the estimated costs to complete the services exceed the minimum 
paid or when the deposit has been exhausted unless and until an amount equal to 
the estimated cost for completion has been deposited with the District. Balances 
remaining upon completion of services will be refunded.  



O R D I N A N C E  NO. ___ 
 

 ORDINANCE OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT RESTATING AND AMENDING MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

9 
MasterFeeScheduleEff010119[011719] 

 

 SECTION 4.  The following provisions of the Master Fee Schedule are hereby 
amended as follows: 
 
The monthly rates to be charged by the District’s Franchisee for the collection, 
removal, and disposal of refuse for all occupied premises (except agricultural  
premises) and recycling services within the District commencing on January 1, 
2019 and until thereafter revised are: 
(MWSD Code §2-7.100) 

   

                                            RESIDENTIAL   

1. Weekly collection, single container placed in front of premises, wet and dry  

garbage ("first can service") in wheeled carts:   

 a. Container limits: volume - 20 gals. (3/10 cu yd),weight 40 lbs, per mo charge $25.26  

 b. Container limits: volume - 32 gals (1/4 cu yd),   weight 60 lbs, per mo charge $31.07  

 c. Container limits: volume - 64 gals (1/2 cu yd),  weight 100 lbs, per mo charge $102.06  

   

2. Special Services (charges added to above, basic changes):   

 a. Container placed at side or rear of dwelling - per container  
 

       $7.76 

 b. Container not placed at specified collection point and return call required- $15.83 

per container   

c. Extra 30 gallon bag with collection (excludes 20 gallon cart service), per bag $8.38 

d. Special collections combined with regular service, including collections for estimate 

brush, yard clippings, boxes, etc.   

   

3. Bulky goods dropoff service four times a year within Montara District limits incl. w/service 

including greenwaste and motor oil in Recology-provided bottles only   

   

4. Weekly commingled recyclable materials collection (64 gallon wheeled cart) incl. w/service 

   

5. Every other week greenwaste (yard trimmings, etc.) collection, limited to four incl. w/service 

(4) thirty gallon containers - customers own containers   

   

6. Bulky goods curbside collection service, limited to four (4) times a year incl. w/service 

One item up to 200 lbs or 5-30 gallon bags   

   

7. Dropoff at Recycling yard in Pacifica of motor oil, latex paint, unpainted lumber, incl. w/service 

large pieces of metal, styrofoam, e-waste, large white goods, furniture, mattresses, 

large amounts of recyclable materials   



O R D I N A N C E  NO. ___ 
 

 ORDINANCE OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT RESTATING AND AMENDING MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

10 
MasterFeeScheduleEff010119[011719] 

   

8. Christmas trees free of charge through January 31st of each year  incl. w/service 

a. After January 31st charge is $20 per tree for removal  $20.00 

   

          MULTIFAMILY, COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL SERVICE   

1. Service to restaurants, hotels, cafes, apartment houses, stores and similar  

places of business, factories, schools and institutions, wet and dry garbage-  

container limits: volume - 30 gal. cans (1/4 cu. Yd), weight - 75 lbs   

 a. Regular collections:   
 1-64 gallon collection once per week                                    
 1-96 gallon collection once per week  

$122.56 
$200.55 

   

 b. Additional 64 or 96 gallon commercial carts picked up more than once a week     
will be original charge times the number of pickups 

Will vary by 
size  

2. Commercial Container Rental:   

 a. 1 cubic yard box - per mo.  $55.76 

 b. 2 cubic yard box - per mo.  $72.29  

   

3. Commercial Container Collections:   

 a. 1 cubic yard box - per collection  $47.12 

 b. 2 cubic yard box - per collection  $93.75  

   

4. Compacted Commercial Container Service:   

 a. 1 cubic yard box - per collection  $91.97  

 b. 2 cubic yard box - per collection  $185.78  

   

5. Recyclable material collection  up to five times a week        incl. w/service 

 
                                          DEBRIS BOX SERVICE 

 
7, 14, 20 and 30 yard containers 
a. Container rental, delivery and pickup charge                                                       
b. $67 per ton confirmed by disposal site weight slip 

  

   

  

 
       $370.39 
Tonnage based 

    

                                          SPECIAL PROVISIONS   

1.  Financial hardship rate for weekly collection for single container placed in front of  
premises, wet and dry garbage 30 gallon can (PGE CARE PROGRAM)  15% 
reduction                                                              

 $25.56 

   

 



O R D I N A N C E  NO. ___ 
 

 ORDINANCE OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT RESTATING AND AMENDING MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

11 
MasterFeeScheduleEff010119[011719] 

SECTION 5. All ordinances or portions thereof in conflict herewith shall be, and 
hereby are, repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 
SECTION 6.  Upon adoption, this ordinance shall be entered in the minutes of the 

Board and posted in three (3) places in the District and shall become effective immediately 
upon the expiration of one week following said posting.  

 
 
 
 

 _____________________________________ 
President, Montara Water and Sanitary District 

 
COUNTERSIGNED: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Secretary, Montara Water and Sanitary District 
 

* * * 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Ordinance No.____ was duly and regularly 
adopted and passed by the Board of the Montara Water and Sanitary District, San 
Mateo County, California, at a Regular meeting thereof held on the 17th day of 
January 2019 by the following vote: 
 

AYES, Directors 
 
 
NOES, Directors: 
 
 
ABSENT, Directors: 

 
_____________________________________ 
Secretary, Montara Water and Sanitary District 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of the Montara Water and Sanitary 
District proposes to adopt an ordinance revising the Master Fee Schedule.  This 
document contains most of the fees levied by the District including the Sewer and 
Water Service Charges and Sewer and Water Connection Permit fees.  The 
District proposes to update Solid Waste Disposal fees.  The Board shall consider 
adoption of this ordinance at a meeting of the Board as follows: 
 
 DATE:  January 17, 2019 
  

TIME: 7:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as the matter may be            
considered 

 
 PLACE:   District Board Chambers 
     8888 Cabrillo Highway 
      Montara, CA 94037 
      (www.mwsd.montara.com) 
 

 

 

 





























































M           MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 
         Prepared for the Meeting Of:  January 17, 2019 

    
                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 
   

  
SUBJECT:   Unaudited Financial Statements – Executive 

Summary 
 
Budget vs. Actual – Sewer July thru November 2018 Variances over $2,000: 
  

• 4400 Fees, $40,309 above Budget – Major increase in the number of 
remodel fees purchased by customers.   

• 4610 Property Tax Receipts, $88,866 below Budget – Funds from the 
County are typically received in December.   

• 4710 Sewer Service Charges, $1,062,517 below Budget – Funds from the 
County are typically received in December. 

• Overall Total Operating Income for the period ending November 30, 
2018 was $1,107,041 below budget. Total revenue received to date is 
$100,761. 

• 5200 Board of Directors $3,672 below Budget – Elections expense has yet 
to be billed and paid.  

• 5400 Legal, $15,369 below Budget – Difference due to timing.  
• 5510 Maintenance, Office $2,545 below Budget – Budgeted projects have 

yet to occur.  
• 5610 Accounting, $2,050 below Budget – Difference due to the timing.   
• 5630 Consulting, $3,235 below Budget – Budgeted projects have yet to 

occur.   
• 5640 Data Services, $3,579 above Budget – Bill for the Parcel 

Management System for 2018-2019. 
• 5720 Telephone & Internet, $2,701.23 below Budget – expenditures are 

being held in check.  
• 5800 Labor, $10,699 above Budget – Employee benefits have been billed 

and paid a month ahead of time.  
• 6170 Claims, Property Damage, $8,056 above Budget – Payment made to 

the State Water Pollution Cleanup & Abatement.  
• 6200 Engineering, $16,865 below Budget – Majority of costs have been 

capital in nature.  
• 6400 Pumping, $3,630 below Budget – Large “catch-up” bill from PG&E 

expected later in the fiscal year.  
• 6600 Collection/ Transmission $4,167 below Budget – No activity in 

current year.  
• 6910 SAM Collections, $52,744 below Budget – Difference due to timing.   
• 6920 SAM Operations, $104,096 below Budget – Difference due to timing. 



M           MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 
         Prepared for the Meeting Of:  January 17, 2019 

    
                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 
   

• 6940 SAM Maintenance, Collection Sys, $16,667 below Budget – No 
activity to date.    

• 6950 SAM Maintenance, Pumping, $8,808 below Budget – One bill paid to 
date for capitalizable costs related to pumping expenses.   

• Overall Total Operating Expenses for the period ending November 
30, 2018 were $200,864 below Budget.  

• Total overall Expenses for the period ending November 30, 2018 
were $215,722 below budget.  For a net ordinary Loss of ($891,319), 
budgeted vs. actual.  Actual net ordinary Loss is ($700,722). 

• 7100 Connection Fees, $17,197 below Budget – No connection sold in 
November.   

• 7200 Interest Income, LAIF, $32,067 above budget – LAIF has been out-
performing projections.  

• 8000 CIP, $986,269 below Budget – No activity in November.  
• 9200 I-Bank Loan, $10,698 below Budget – Difference due to timing. 

  



M           MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 
         Prepared for the Meeting Of:  January 17, 2019 

    
                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 
   

• Budget vs. Actual – Water July thru November 2018 Variances over 
$2,000: 

 
• 4610 Property tax Receipts, $88,866 below Budget – Funds from the 

County are typically received in December. 
• 4740 Testing, Backflow, $3,295 below Budget – Minimal activity in the 

current fiscal year.  
• 4810 Water Sales, Domestic, $62,300 above budget – Increase due to 

rate increase as well as increased usage.  
• Overall Total Operating Income for the period ending November 30, 

2018 was $27,247 below budget. Total revenue received to date is 
$910,688. 

• 5240 CDPH Fees, $6,458 below Budget – No activity in the current fiscal 
year. 

• 5250 Conference Attendance, $ 2,388 below Budget – Minimal activity in 
the current fiscal year.  

• 5400 Legal, $20,193 below Budget – Difference due to timing.  
• 5530 Memberships, $4,903 below Budget – Membership dues paid to the 

American Water Works Association & CSDA. Most paid at the beginning 
of the calendar year.  

• 5610 Accounting, $ 2,050 below Budget – Difference due to timing. 
• 5630 Consulting, $8,900 below Budget – Budgeted projects have yet to 

occur.  
• 5800 Labor, $57,746 below Budget – Major line items to decrease are 

staff wages due to the District not yet employing the services of a fourth 
operator.  

• 6170 Claims, property Damage, $4,144 below Budget – Minimal activity in 
this fiscal year.  

• 6180 Communications, $4,636 above Budget – SCADA system 
maintenance.  

• 6200 Engineering, $45,7230 above Budget – Water Quality engineering 
costs are higher than anticipated due to changes at the State Water 
Board.  

• 6400 Pumping, $16,545 below Budget – Large “catch-up” bill expected 
later in the fiscal year.    

• 6500 Supply, $11,063 below Budget – Less water purchases than 
anticipated.  

• 6600 Collection/Transmission, $19,625 below Budget – No activity in 
November. 



M           MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 
         Prepared for the Meeting Of:  January 17, 2019 

    
                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 
   

• 6700 Treatment, $12,572 below budget – Chemicals & Filtering budget 
and treatment analysis costs held below expectations.  

• Overall Total Operating Expenses for the period ending November 
30, 2018 were $17,174 below Budget. 

• Total overall Expenses for the period ending November 30, 2018 
were $122,758 below budget.  For a net ordinary income of $95,510, 
budgeted vs. actual. Actual net ordinary income is $339,082. 

• 7100 Connection Fees, $37,410 below Budget – No new connections sold 
in November. 

• 7600 Bond Revenues, G.O. $459,408 below Budget – Funds from the 
County are typically received in December.   

• 8000 CIP, $148,082 below Budget – Minimal activity in November.      
• 9100 Interest Expense – GO Bonds $107,349 below Budget – Difference 

due to timing. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
This is for Board information only 



Water

Jul - Nov 18 Budget $ Over Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4220 · Cell Tower Lease 15,231.05 14,791.65 439.40

4400 · Fees

4410 · Administrative Fee (New Constr) 1,563.00 2,291.65 -728.65

4420 · Administrative Fee (Remodel) 0.00 375.00 -375.00

4430 · Inspection Fee (New Constr) 1,480.00 2,083.35 -603.35

4440 · Inspection Fee (Remodel) 0.00 270.85 -270.85

4460 · Remodel Fees 1,534.72

Total 4400 · Fees 4,577.72 5,020.85 -443.13

4510 · Grants 280.00

4610 · Property Tax Receipts 25,717.39 114,583.35 -88,865.96

4740 · Testing, Backflow 3,372.00 6,666.65 -3,294.65

4810 · Water Sales, Domestic 860,423.75 798,123.35 62,300.40

4850 · Water Sales Refunds, Customer -2,234.65 -1,250.00 -984.65

4990 · Other Revenue 3,321.31

Total Income 910,688.57 937,935.85 -27,247.28

Gross Profit 910,688.57 937,935.85 -27,247.28

Expense

5000 · Administrative

5190 · Bank Fees 1,152.01 1,458.35 -306.34

5200 · Board of Directors

5210 · Board Meetings 294.63 1,666.65 -1,372.02

5220 · Director Fees 825.00 1,375.00 -550.00

Total 5200 · Board of Directors 1,119.63 3,041.65 -1,922.02

5240 · CDPH Fees 0.00 6,458.35 -6,458.35

5250 · Conference Attendance 111.63 2,500.00 -2,388.37

5270 · Information Systems 1,079.50 1,250.00 -170.50

5300 · Insurance

5310 · Fidelity Bond 437.50 208.35 229.15

5320 · Property & Liability Insurance 2,215.00 1,125.00 1,090.00

Total 5300 · Insurance 2,652.50 1,333.35 1,319.15

5350 · LAFCO Assessment 0.00 1,041.65 -1,041.65

5400 · Legal

5420 · Meeting Attendance, Legal 13.50 3,541.65 -3,528.15

5430 · General Legal 1,550.00 25,000.00 -23,450.00

5440 · Litigation 6,785.00

Total 5400 · Legal 8,348.50 28,541.65 -20,193.15

1:52 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

12/11/18 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water
Accrual Basis July through November 2018

See Executive Summary Document Page 1



Water

Jul - Nov 18 Budget $ Over Budget

5510 · Maintenance, Office 1,359.59 3,333.35 -1,973.76

5530 · Memberships 3,639.00 8,541.65 -4,902.65

5540 · Office Supplies 2,975.09 2,916.65 58.44

5550 · Postage 4,793.41 2,916.65 1,876.76

5560 · Printing & Publishing 1,569.92 833.35 736.57

5600 · Professional Services

5610 · Accounting 10,450.00 12,500.00 -2,050.00

5620 · Audit 5,000.00 5,416.65 -416.65

5630 · Consulting 5,683.81 14,583.35 -8,899.54

5650 · Labor & HR Support 814.00 1,041.65 -227.65

5660 · Payroll Services 363.17 416.65 -53.48

Total 5600 · Professional Services 22,310.98 33,958.30 -11,647.32

5710 · San Mateo Co. Tax Roll Charges 119.00

5720 · Telephone & Internet 9,489.59 10,416.65 -927.06

5730 · Mileage Reimbursement 974.85 833.35 141.50

5740 · Reference Materials 0.00 333.35 -333.35

5790 · Other Adminstrative 176.00

5800 · Labor

5810 · CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan 14,691.73 17,928.75 -3,237.02

5820 · Employee Benefits 34,648.16 33,357.50 1,290.66

5830 · Disability Insurance 1,122.04 1,786.65 -664.61

5840 · Payroll Taxes 15,139.33 20,316.65 -5,177.32

5850 · PARS 12,581.45 14,889.15 -2,307.70

5900 · Wages

5910 · Management 43,110.01 43,218.75 -108.74

5920 · Staff 148,824.28 177,835.00 -29,010.72

5930 · Staff Certification 3,500.00 4,750.00 -1,250.00

5940 · Staff Overtime 21,935.00 28,889.15 -6,954.15

5950 · Staff Standby 10,273.51 10,884.60 -611.09

Total 5900 · Wages 227,642.80 265,577.50 -37,934.70

5960 · Worker's Comp Insurance 0.00 9,715.40 -9,715.40

Total 5800 · Labor 305,825.51 363,571.60 -57,746.09

Total 5000 · Administrative 367,696.71 473,279.90 -105,583.19

6000 · Operations

6160 · Backflow Prevention 0.00 416.65 -416.65

6170 · Claims, Property Damage 21.75 4,166.65 -4,144.90

6180 · Communications

6185 · SCADA Maintenance 8,803.19 4,166.65 4,636.54

Total 6180 · Communications 8,803.19 4,166.65 4,636.54

6195 · Education & Training 2,387.22 3,750.00 -1,362.78

1:52 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

12/11/18 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water
Accrual Basis July through November 2018

See Executive Summary Document Page 2



Water

Jul - Nov 18 Budget $ Over Budget

6200 · Engineering

6210 · Meeting Attendance, Engineering 0.00 208.35 -208.35

6220 · General Engineering 7,968.05 18,750.00 -10,781.95

6230 · Water Quality Engineering 98,386.79 41,666.65 56,720.14

Total 6200 · Engineering 106,354.84 60,625.00 45,729.84

6320 · Equipment & Tools, Expensed 4,053.21 2,083.35 1,969.86

6330 · Facilities

6335 · Alarm Services 306.54 333.35 -26.81

6337 · Landscaping 1,946.95 2,500.00 -553.05

Total 6330 · Facilities 2,253.49 2,833.35 -579.86

6370 · Lab Supplies & Equipment 954.00 833.35 120.65

6400 · Pumping

6410 · Pumping Fuel & Electricity 26,467.10 37,500.00 -11,032.90

6420 · Pumping Maintenance, Generators 822.01 4,166.65 -3,344.64

6430 · Pumping Maintenance, General 207.57 2,083.35 -1,875.78

6440 · Pumping Equipment, Expensed 0.00 291.65 -291.65

Total 6400 · Pumping 27,496.68 44,041.65 -16,544.97

6500 · Supply

6510 · Maintenance, Raw Water Mains 1,481.50 875.00 606.50

6520 · Maintenance, Wells 2,381.50 4,166.65 -1,785.15

6530 · Water Purchases 6,781.42 16,666.65 -9,885.23

Total 6500 · Supply 10,644.42 21,708.30 -11,063.88

6600 · Collection/Transmission

6610 · Hydrants -570.00 416.65 -986.65

6620 · Maintenance, Water Mains 12,688.49 20,833.35 -8,144.86

6630 · Maintenance, Water Svc Lines 0.00 8,333.35 -8,333.35

6640 · Maintenance, Tanks 0.00 416.65 -416.65

6650 · Maint., Distribution General 0.00 2,916.65 -2,916.65

6670 · Meters 2,214.89 1,041.65 1,173.24

Total 6600 · Collection/Transmission 14,333.38 33,958.30 -19,624.92

6700 · Treatment

6710 · Chemicals & Filtering 1,056.94 12,500.00 -11,443.06

6720 · Maintenance, Treatment Equip. 10,400.45 1,666.65 8,733.80

6730 · Treatment Analysis 7,637.10 17,500.00 -9,862.90

Total 6700 · Treatment 19,094.49 31,666.65 -12,572.16

6770 · Uniforms 3,572.65 5,000.00 -1,427.35

1:52 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

12/11/18 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water
Accrual Basis July through November 2018

See Executive Summary Document Page 3



Water

Jul - Nov 18 Budget $ Over Budget

6800 · Vehicles

6810 · Fuel 2,389.92 3,333.35 -943.43

6820 · Truck Equipment, Expensed 108.64 416.65 -308.01

6830 · Truck Repairs 1,397.54 2,083.35 -685.81

Total 6800 · Vehicles 3,896.10 5,833.35 -1,937.25

6890 · Other Operations 43.48

Total 6000 · Operations 203,908.90 221,083.25 -17,174.35

Total Expense 571,605.61 694,363.15 -122,757.54

Net Ordinary Income 339,082.96 243,572.70 95,510.26

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

7000 · Capital Account Revenues

7100 · Connection Fees

7110 · Connection Fees (New Constr) 36,660.00 72,091.65 -35,431.65

7130 · Conn. Fees, PFP (New Constr) 29,322.73 33,333.35 -4,010.62

7140 · Conn. Fees, PFP (Remodel) 2,032.40

Total 7100 · Connection Fees 68,015.13 105,425.00 -37,409.87

7600 · Bond Revenues, G.O. 19,940.45 479,348.35 -459,407.90

Total 7000 · Capital Account Revenues 87,955.58 584,773.35 -496,817.77

Total Other Income 87,955.58 584,773.35 -496,817.77

Other Expense

8000 · Capital Improvement Program

8100 · Water 52,334.88 200,416.65 -148,081.77

Total 8000 · Capital Improvement Program 52,334.88 200,416.65 -148,081.77

9000 · Capital Account Expenses

9075 · PFP Connection Expenses 6,135.00

9100 · Interest Expense - GO Bonds 20,593.81 127,943.00 -107,349.19

9125 · PNC Equipment Lease Interest 7,197.85 7,197.86 -0.01

9210 · Conservation Program/Rebates 700.00 833.35 -133.35

Total 9000 · Capital Account Expenses 34,626.66 135,974.21 -101,347.55

Total Other Expense 86,961.54 336,390.86 -249,429.32

Net Other Income 994.04 248,382.49 -247,388.45

Net Income 340,077.00 491,955.19 -151,878.19

1:52 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

12/11/18 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water
Accrual Basis July through November 2018

See Executive Summary Document Page 4



Sewer

Jul - Nov 18 Budget $ Over Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4220 · Cell Tower Lease 15,231.00 14,791.65 439.35

4400 · Fees

4410 · Administrative Fee (New Constr) 2,084.00 1,458.35 625.65

4420 · Administrative Fee (Remodel) 0.00 833.35 -833.35

4430 · Inspection Fee (New Constr) 1,972.00 1,458.35 513.65

4440 · Inspection Fee (Remodel) 0.00 1,666.65 -1,666.65

4460 · Remodel Fees 43,336.00 1,666.65 41,669.35

Total 4400 · Fees 47,392.00 7,083.35 40,308.65

4610 · Property Tax Receipts 25,717.40 114,583.35 -88,865.95

4710 · Sewer Service Charges 909.70 1,063,427.10 -1,062,517.40

4720 · Sewer Service Refunds, Customer 0.00 -1,666.65 1,666.65

4760 · Waste Collection Revenues 8,759.75 9,583.35 -823.60

4990 · Other Revenue 2,751.30

Total Income 100,761.15 1,207,802.15 -1,107,041.00

Gross Profit 100,761.15 1,207,802.15 -1,107,041.00

Expense

5000 · Administrative

5190 · Bank Fees 4,229.47 2,708.35 1,521.12

5200 · Board of Directors

5210 · Board Meetings 294.65 1,041.65 -747.00

5220 · Director Fees 825.00 1,666.65 -841.65

5230 · Election Expenses 0.00 2,083.35 -2,083.35

Total 5200 · Board of Directors 1,119.65 4,791.65 -3,672.00

5250 · Conference Attendance 111.63 1,250.00 -1,138.37

5270 · Information Systems 1,079.50 1,666.65 -587.15

5300 · Insurance

5310 · Fidelity Bond 437.50 208.35 229.15

5320 · Property & Liability Insurance 2,215.00 833.35 1,381.65

Total 5300 · Insurance 2,652.50 1,041.70 1,610.80

5350 · LAFCO Assessment 0.00 833.35 -833.35

5400 · Legal

5420 · Meeting Attendance, Legal 13.50 3,958.35 -3,944.85

5430 · General Legal 16,195.00 62,500.00 -46,305.00

5440 · Litigation 34,880.00

Total 5400 · Legal 51,088.50 66,458.35 -15,369.85

1:51 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

12/11/18 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer
Accrual Basis July through November 2018

See Executive Summary Document Page 1



Sewer

Jul - Nov 18 Budget $ Over Budget

5510 · Maintenance, Office 788.74 3,333.35 -2,544.61

5530 · Memberships 3,370.00

5540 · Office Supplies 1,411.97 3,333.35 -1,921.38

5550 · Postage 1,420.42 1,041.65 378.77

5560 · Printing & Publishing 1,569.94 2,083.35 -513.41

5600 · Professional Services

5610 · Accounting 10,450.00 12,500.00 -2,050.00

5620 · Audit 5,000.00 5,416.65 -416.65

5630 · Consulting 5,098.81 8,333.35 -3,234.54

5640 · Data Services 6,079.02 2,500.00 3,579.02

5650 · Labor & HR Support 814.00 1,041.65 -227.65

5660 · Payroll Services 363.17 416.65 -53.48

Total 5600 · Professional Services 27,805.00 30,208.30 -2,403.30

5710 · San Mateo Co. Tax Roll Charges 119.00 1,041.65 -922.65

5720 · Telephone & Internet 7,298.77 10,000.00 -2,701.23

5730 · Mileage Reimbursement 878.91 625.00 253.91

5740 · Reference Materials 0.00 83.35 -83.35

5800 · Labor

5810 · CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan 6,530.36 6,630.00 -99.64

5820 · Employee Benefits 25,213.36 14,847.90 10,365.46

5830 · Disability Insurance 453.44 639.15 -185.71

5840 · Payroll Taxes 5,253.27 7,245.85 -1,992.58

5850 · PARS 6,357.09 6,423.35 -66.26

5900 · Wages

5910 · Management 43,110.09 43,218.75 -108.66

5920 · Staff 53,593.42 49,602.90 3,990.52

5930 · Staff Certification 750.00 750.00 0.00

5940 · Staff Overtime 958.68 1,143.35 -184.67

Total 5900 · Wages 98,412.19 94,715.00 3,697.19

5960 · Worker's Comp Insurance 0.00 1,019.60 -1,019.60

Total 5800 · Labor 142,219.71 131,520.85 10,698.86

Total 5000 · Administrative 247,163.71 262,020.90 -14,857.19

6000 · Operations

6170 · Claims, Property Damage 16,389.30 8,333.35 8,055.95

6195 · Education & Training 0.00 416.65 -416.65

6200 · Engineering

6210 · Meeting Attendance, Engineering 0.00 833.35 -833.35

6220 · General Engineering 8,968.70 25,000.00 -16,031.30

Total 6200 · Engineering 8,968.70 25,833.35 -16,864.65

6320 · Equipment & Tools, Expensed 0.00 416.65 -416.65

1:51 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

12/11/18 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer
Accrual Basis July through November 2018

See Executive Summary Document Page 2



Sewer

Jul - Nov 18 Budget $ Over Budget

6330 · Facilities

6335 · Alarm Services 1,873.74 2,375.00 -501.26

6337 · Landscaping 844.00 1,000.00 -156.00

Total 6330 · Facilities 2,717.74 3,375.00 -657.26

6400 · Pumping

6410 · Pumping Fuel & Electricity 13,453.59 17,083.35 -3,629.76

Total 6400 · Pumping 13,453.59 17,083.35 -3,629.76

6600 · Collection/Transmission

6660 · Maintenance, Collection System 0.00 4,166.65 -4,166.65

Total 6600 · Collection/Transmission 0.00 4,166.65 -4,166.65

6800 · Vehicles

6810 · Fuel 206.69 416.65 -209.96

6820 · Truck Equipment, Expensed 0.00 66.65 -66.65

6830 · Truck Repairs 239.06 416.65 -177.59

Total 6800 · Vehicles 445.75 899.95 -454.20

6900 · Sewer Authority Midcoastside

6910 · SAM Collections 83,937.57 136,681.65 -52,744.08

6920 · SAM Operations 416,382.32 520,477.90 -104,095.58

6940 · SAM Maintenance, Collection Sys 0.00 16,666.65 -16,666.65

6950 · SAM Maintenance, Pumping 12,025.16 20,833.35 -8,808.19

Total 6900 · Sewer Authority Midcoastside 512,345.05 694,659.55 -182,314.50

Total 6000 · Operations 554,320.13 755,184.50 -200,864.37

Total Expense 801,483.84 1,017,205.40 -215,721.56

Net Ordinary Income -700,722.69 190,596.75 -891,319.44

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

7000 · Capital Account Revenues

7100 · Connection Fees

7110 · Connection Fees (New Constr) 54,911.00 60,250.00 -5,339.00

7120 · Connection Fees (Remodel) 6,979.00 20,833.35 -13,854.35

7130 · Conn. Fees, PFP (New Constr) 1,996.40

Total 7100 · Connection Fees 63,886.40 81,083.35 -17,196.95

7200 · Interest Income - LAIF 44,567.46 12,500.00 32,067.46

Total 7000 · Capital Account Revenues 108,453.86 93,583.35 14,870.51

Total Other Income 108,453.86 93,583.35 14,870.51

1:51 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

12/11/18 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer
Accrual Basis July through November 2018

See Executive Summary Document Page 3



Sewer

Jul - Nov 18 Budget $ Over Budget

Other Expense

8000 · Capital Improvement Program

8075 · Sewer 629,355.52 1,615,625.00 -986,269.48

Total 8000 · Capital Improvement Program 629,355.52 1,615,625.00 -986,269.48

9000 · Capital Account Expenses

9125 · PNC Equipment Lease Interest 7,197.84 7,197.86 -0.02

9200 · I-Bank Loan 1,263.57 11,961.96 -10,698.39

Total 9000 · Capital Account Expenses 8,461.41 19,159.82 -10,698.41

Total Other Expense 637,816.93 1,634,784.82 -996,967.89

Net Other Income -529,363.07 -1,541,201.47 1,011,838.40

Net Income -1,230,085.76 -1,350,604.72 120,518.96

1:51 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

12/11/18 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer
Accrual Basis July through November 2018

See Executive Summary Document Page 4



 Montara Water & Sanitary District
 Restricted and Non Restricted Cash Assets

 July 2018 through June 2019
Assets and Reserves Information

Target  $ Over/(Under) % Over/Under
Year to Date Cash Information July August September October November December January February March April May June Reserves Targets Targets

Sewer ‐ Operations
Wells Fargo Operating ‐ Sewer 2,527,401.70      2,272,516.58      2,196,490.71    1,364,083.77    1,531,356.14   

Sewer ‐ Reserve Accounts

LAIF  ‐
Capital Reserve 3,786,797.70      3,786,797.70      3,786,797.70    3,810,640.78    3,810,640.78    2,589,500.00      1,197,297.70       146%
Connection Fees Reserve 194,600.00          194,600.00          194,600.00       194,600.00       194,600.00       194,600.00          ‐                         100%
Operating Reserve 406,882.00          406,882.00          406,882.00       406,882.00       406,882.00       406,882.00          ‐                         100%

Sub‐total 4,388,279.70      4,388,279.70      4,388,279.70    4,412,122.78    4,412,122.78    ‐                      ‐                        ‐                        ‐                      ‐                        ‐                        ‐                           

Water ‐ Operations
Wells Fargo Operating ‐ Water 886,304.60          900,197.83          915,718.26       930,168.60       945,981.14      

Water ‐ Reserve Accounts

Wells Fargo Bank‐
Capital Reserve 398,249.00          398,249.00          398,249.00       398,249.00       398,249.00       945,817.00          (547,568.00)         42%
Connection Fees Reserve 253,020.00          253,020.00          253,020.00       253,020.00       253,020.00       253,020.00          ‐                         100%
SRF Reserve 48,222.00             48,222.00             48,222.00          48,222.00          48,222.00          48,222.00             ‐                         100%
Operating Reserve 46,009.00             46,009.00             46,009.00          46,009.00          46,009.00          277,745.00          (231,736.00)         17%

Sub‐total 745,500.00          745,500.00          745,500.00       745,500.00       745,500.00       ‐                      ‐                        ‐                        ‐                      ‐                        ‐                        ‐                           

Water ‐ Restricted accounts
First Republic Bank ‐ Water

Acquistion & Improvement Fund 376.13                  346.13                  316.13                286.13                346.13               
Cost of issuance 62.94                    32.94                    2.94                    ‐                      ‐                     
GO Bonds Fund 1,514,515.09      939,297.05          940,709.77       940,709.77       940,709.77      

Sub‐total 1,514,954.16      939,676.12          941,028.84       940,995.90       941,055.90       ‐                      ‐                        ‐                        ‐                      ‐                        ‐                        ‐                           

Total Cash and equivalents 10,062,440.16    9,246,170.23      9,187,017.51    8,392,871.05    8,576,015.96    ‐                      ‐                        ‐                        ‐                      ‐                        ‐                        ‐                           



 1:54 PM

 12/11/18

 Accrual Basis

 Montara Water & Sanitary District

 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer
 July 2018 through June 2019

TOTAL

Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul '18 - Jun 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4220 · Cell Tower Lease 3,046.20 3,046.20 3,046.20 3,046.20 3,046.20 15,231.00 17,750.02 -2,519.02 85.81%

4400 · Fees

4410 · Administrative Fee (New Constr) 1,563.00 521.00 2,084.00 1,749.98 334.02 119.09%

4420 · Administrative Fee (Remodel) 999.98 -999.98

4430 · Inspection Fee (New Constr) 1,480.00 492.00 1,972.00 1,749.98 222.02 112.69%

4440 · Inspection Fee (Remodel) 2,000.02 -2,000.02

4460 · Remodel Fees 20,010.50 612.50 22,485.00 114.00 114.00 43,336.00 2,000.02 41,335.98 2,166.78%

Total 4400 · Fees 20,010.50 3,655.50 22,485.00 114.00 1,127.00 47,392.00 8,499.98 38,892.02 557.55%

4610 · Property Tax Receipts 635.07 227.05 24,855.28 25,717.40 137,499.98 -111,782.58 18.7%

4710 · Sewer Service Charges 909.70 909.70 1,276,112.48 -1,275,202.78 0.07%

4720 · Sewer Service Refunds, Customer -2,000.02 2,000.02

4760 · Waste Collection Revenues 1,054.27 3,013.27 1,067.16 2,616.64 1,008.41 8,759.75 11,499.98 -2,740.23 76.17%

4990 · Other Revenue 512.29 1,100.00 1,000.00 139.01 2,751.30

Total Income 24,110.97 11,136.96 28,333.43 7,003.89 30,175.90 100,761.15 1,449,362.42 -1,348,601.27 6.95%

Gross Profit 24,110.97 11,136.96 28,333.43 7,003.89 30,175.90 100,761.15 1,449,362.42 -1,348,601.27 6.95%

Expense

5000 · Administrative

5190 · Bank Fees 2,741.45 348.18 388.21 368.24 383.39 4,229.47 3,249.98 979.49 130.14%

5200 · Board of Directors

5210 · Board Meetings 20.92 125.00 148.73 294.65 1,250.02 -955.37 23.57%

5220 · Director Fees 187.50 262.50 375.00 825.00 2,000.02 -1,175.02 41.25%

5230 · Election Expenses 2,499.98 -2,499.98

Total 5200 · Board of Directors 20.92 312.50 262.50 523.73 1,119.65 5,750.02 -4,630.37 19.47%

5250 · Conference Attendance 111.63 111.63 1,500.00 -1,388.37 7.44%

5270 · Information Systems 1,079.50 1,079.50 2,000.02 -920.52 53.97%

5300 · Insurance

5310 · Fidelity Bond 437.50 437.50 249.98 187.52 175.01%

5320 · Property & Liability Insurance 2,215.00 2,215.00 999.98 1,215.02 221.5%

Total 5300 · Insurance 437.50 2,215.00 2,652.50 1,249.96 1,402.54 212.21%

5350 · LAFCO Assessment 999.98 -999.98

5400 · Legal

5420 · Meeting Attendance, Legal 13.50 13.50 4,749.98 -4,736.48 0.28%

 Page 2 of 10 See Executive Summary Document



 1:54 PM

 12/11/18

 Accrual Basis

 Montara Water & Sanitary District

 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer
 July 2018 through June 2019

TOTAL

Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul '18 - Jun 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5430 · General Legal 16,195.00 16,195.00 75,000.00 -58,805.00 21.59%

5440 · Litigation 2,450.00 24,430.00 8,000.00 34,880.00

Total 5400 · Legal 2,450.00 24,430.00 24,208.50 51,088.50 79,749.98 -28,661.48 64.06%

5510 · Maintenance, Office 528.74 100.00 160.00 788.74 3,999.98 -3,211.24 19.72%

5530 · Memberships 3,370.00 3,370.00

5540 · Office Supplies 234.38 354.80 170.75 652.04 1,411.97 3,999.98 -2,588.01 35.3%

5550 · Postage 77.67 100.50 94.81 741.00 406.44 1,420.42 1,250.02 170.40 113.63%

5560 · Printing & Publishing 86.83 45.44 549.38 53.77 834.52 1,569.94 2,499.98 -930.04 62.8%

5600 · Professional Services

5610 · Accounting 2,050.00 8,400.00 10,450.00 15,000.00 -4,550.00 69.67%

5620 · Audit 5,000.00 5,000.00 6,500.02 -1,500.02 76.92%

5630 · Consulting 1,338.25 375.00 3,385.56 5,098.81 9,999.98 -4,901.17 50.99%

5640 · Data Services 6,079.02 6,079.02 3,000.00 3,079.02 202.63%

5650 · Labor & HR Support 203.50 203.50 203.50 203.50 814.00 1,250.02 -436.02 65.12%

5660 · Payroll Services 71.08 73.30 73.30 73.30 72.19 363.17 500.02 -136.85 72.63%

Total 5600 · Professional Services 1,612.83 8,780.82 276.80 17,062.36 72.19 27,805.00 36,250.04 -8,445.04 76.7%

5710 · San Mateo Co. Tax Roll Charges 119.00 119.00 1,250.02 -1,131.02 9.52%

5720 · Telephone & Internet 1,440.07 1,496.77 154.48 3,974.09 233.36 7,298.77 12,000.00 -4,701.23 60.82%

5730 · Mileage Reimbursement 878.91 878.91 750.00 128.91 117.19%

5740 · Reference Materials 99.98 -99.98

5790 · Other Adminstrative

5800 · Labor

5810 · CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan 1,293.41 1,337.49 1,235.40 1,348.41 1,315.65 6,530.36 7,956.00 -1,425.64 82.08%

5820 · Employee Benefits 7,618.22 3,809.11 6,167.81 3,809.11 3,809.11 25,213.36 17,817.52 7,395.84 141.51%

5830 · Disability Insurance 113.36 113.36 113.36 113.36 453.44 767.02 -313.58 59.12%

5840 · Payroll Taxes 1,352.50 981.57 877.41 1,011.95 1,029.84 5,253.27 8,694.98 -3,441.71 60.42%

5850 · PARS 1,265.24 1,301.24 1,210.88 1,305.65 1,274.08 6,357.09 7,707.98 -1,350.89 82.47%

5900 · Wages

5910 · Management 9,584.73 8,381.34 8,381.34 8,381.34 8,381.34 43,110.09 51,862.50 -8,752.41 83.12%

5920 · Staff 10,472.97 11,003.05 9,730.60 11,244.04 11,142.76 53,593.42 59,523.52 -5,930.10 90.04%

5930 · Staff Certification 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 750.00 900.00 -150.00 83.33%

5940 · Staff Overtime 43.56 89.28 245.52 580.32 958.68 1,371.98 -413.30 69.88%

Total 5900 · Wages 20,251.26 19,623.67 18,261.94 20,020.90 20,254.42 98,412.19 113,658.00 -15,245.81 86.59%

5960 · Worker's Comp Insurance 1,223.48 -1,223.48

Total 5800 · Labor 31,893.99 27,166.44 27,866.80 27,609.38 27,683.10 142,219.71 157,824.98 -15,605.27 90.11%

 Page 3 of 10 See Executive Summary Document



 1:54 PM

 12/11/18

 Accrual Basis

 Montara Water & Sanitary District

 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer
 July 2018 through June 2019

TOTAL

Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul '18 - Jun 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Total 5000 · Administrative 41,749.27 39,571.69 56,508.73 79,721.02 29,613.00 247,163.71 314,424.92 -67,261.21 78.61%

6000 · Operations

6170 · Claims, Property Damage 339.30 16,050.00 16,389.30 9,999.98 6,389.32 163.89%

6195 · Education & Training 500.02 -500.02

6200 · Engineering

6210 · Meeting Attendance, Engineering 999.98 -999.98

6220 · General Engineering 2,184.00 6,784.70 8,968.70 30,000.00 -21,031.30 29.9%

Total 6200 · Engineering 2,184.00 6,784.70 8,968.70 30,999.98 -22,031.28 28.93%

6320 · Equipment & Tools, Expensed 500.02 -500.02

6330 · Facilities

6335 · Alarm Services 518.82 391.80 444.30 518.82 1,873.74 2,850.00 -976.26 65.75%

6337 · Landscaping 190.00 218.00 218.00 218.00 844.00 1,200.00 -356.00 70.33%

Total 6330 · Facilities 518.82 581.80 662.30 736.82 218.00 2,717.74 4,050.00 -1,332.26 67.11%

6400 · Pumping

6410 · Pumping Fuel & Electricity 3,313.73 3,759.06 5.26 6,043.52 332.02 13,453.59 20,499.98 -7,046.39 65.63%

Total 6400 · Pumping 3,313.73 3,759.06 5.26 6,043.52 332.02 13,453.59 20,499.98 -7,046.39 65.63%

6600 · Collection/Transmission

6660 · Maintenance, Collection System 5,000.02 -5,000.02

Total 6600 · Collection/Transmission 5,000.02 -5,000.02

6800 · Vehicles

6810 · Fuel 117.48 89.21 206.69 500.02 -293.33 41.34%

6820 · Truck Equipment, Expensed 80.02 -80.02

6830 · Truck Repairs 31.45 207.61 239.06 500.02 -260.96 47.81%

Total 6800 · Vehicles 148.93 296.82 445.75 1,080.06 -634.31 41.27%

6900 · Sewer Authority Midcoastside

6910 · SAM Collections 83,937.57 83,937.57 164,018.02 -80,080.45 51.18%

6920 · SAM Operations 104,095.58 104,095.58 104,095.58 104,095.58 416,382.32 624,573.52 -208,191.20 66.67%

6940 · SAM Maintenance, Collection Sys 20,000.02 -20,000.02

6950 · SAM Maintenance, Pumping 12,025.16 12,025.16 24,999.98 -12,974.82 48.1%

Total 6900 · Sewer Authority Midcoastside 104,095.58 104,095.58 104,095.58 200,058.31 512,345.05 833,591.54 -321,246.49 61.46%

Total 6000 · Operations 108,416.36 110,620.44 105,059.96 213,623.35 16,600.02 554,320.13 906,221.60 -351,901.47 61.17%

 Page 4 of 10 See Executive Summary Document



 1:54 PM

 12/11/18

 Accrual Basis

 Montara Water & Sanitary District

 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer
 July 2018 through June 2019

TOTAL

Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul '18 - Jun 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Total Expense 150,165.63 150,192.13 161,568.69 293,344.37 46,213.02 801,483.84 1,220,646.52 -419,162.68 65.66%

Net Ordinary Income -126,054.66 -139,055.17 -133,235.26 -286,340.48 -16,037.12 -700,722.69 228,715.90 -929,438.59 -306.37%

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

7000 · Capital Account Revenues

7100 · Connection Fees

7110 · Connection Fees (New Constr) 24,913.00 24,913.00 5,085.00 54,911.00 72,300.00 -17,389.00 75.95%

7120 · Connection Fees (Remodel) 6,979.00 6,979.00 24,999.98 -18,020.98 27.92%

7130 · Conn. Fees, PFP (New Constr) 1,996.40 1,996.40

Total 7100 · Connection Fees 26,909.40 24,913.00 6,979.00 5,085.00 63,886.40 97,299.98 -33,413.58 65.66%

7200 · Interest Income - LAIF 20,724.38 23,843.08 44,567.46 12,500.00 32,067.46 356.54%

Total 7000 · Capital Account Revenues 47,633.78 24,913.00 6,979.00 28,928.08 108,453.86 109,799.98 -1,346.12 98.77%

Total Other Income 47,633.78 24,913.00 6,979.00 28,928.08 108,453.86 109,799.98 -1,346.12 98.77%

Other Expense

8000 · Capital Improvement Program

8075 · Sewer 164,486.00 464,869.52 629,355.52 1,938,750.00 -1,309,394.48 32.46%

Total 8000 · Capital Improvement Program 164,486.00 464,869.52 629,355.52 1,938,750.00 -1,309,394.48 32.46%

9000 · Capital Account Expenses

9125 · PNC Equipment Lease Interest 1,460.18 2,890.09 2,847.57 7,197.84 8,540.57 -1,342.73 84.28%

9200 · I-Bank Loan 1,263.57 1,263.57 11,961.96 -10,698.39 10.56%

Total 9000 · Capital Account Expenses 2,723.75 2,890.09 2,847.57 8,461.41 20,502.53 -12,041.12 41.27%

Total Other Expense 2,723.75 167,376.09 467,717.09 637,816.93 1,959,252.53 -1,321,435.60 32.55%

Net Other Income 44,910.03 -142,463.09 6,979.00 -438,789.01 -529,363.07 -1,849,452.55 1,320,089.48 28.62%

Net Income -81,144.63 -281,518.26 -126,256.26 -725,129.49 -16,037.12 -1,230,085.76 -1,620,736.65 390,650.89 75.9%

 Page 5 of 10 See Executive Summary Document



 1:55 PM

 12/11/18

 Accrual Basis

 Montara Water & Sanitary District

 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water
 July 2018 through June 2019

TOTAL

Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul '18 - Jun 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4220 · Cell Tower Lease 3,046.21 3,046.21 3,046.21 3,046.21 3,046.21 15,231.05 17,750.02 -2,518.97 85.81%

4400 · Fees

4410 · Administrative Fee (New Constr) 521.00 521.00 521.00 1,563.00 2,750.02 -1,187.02 56.84%

4420 · Administrative Fee (Remodel) 450.00 -450.00

4430 · Inspection Fee (New Constr) 496.00 492.00 492.00 1,480.00 2,499.98 -1,019.98 59.2%

4440 · Inspection Fee (Remodel) 324.98 -324.98

4460 · Remodel Fees 354.00 1,180.72 1,534.72

Total 4400 · Fees 354.00 1,017.00 1,013.00 2,193.72 4,577.72 6,024.98 -1,447.26 75.98%

4510 · Grants 280.00 280.00

4610 · Property Tax Receipts 635.08 227.05 24,855.26 25,717.39 137,499.98 -111,782.59 18.7%

4740 · Testing, Backflow 3,372.00 3,372.00 8,000.02 -4,628.02 42.15%

4810 · Water Sales, Domestic 139,171.95 220,638.79 181,536.41 154,670.09 164,406.51 860,423.75 957,747.98 -97,324.23 89.84%

4850 · Water Sales Refunds, Customer -818.04 -1,416.61 -2,234.65 -1,500.00 -734.65 148.98%

4990 · Other Revenue 512.30 1,100.00 1,570.00 139.01 3,321.31

Total Income 142,572.16 224,676.26 184,901.09 160,526.35 198,012.71 910,688.57 1,125,522.98 -214,834.41 80.91%

Gross Profit 142,572.16 224,676.26 184,901.09 160,526.35 198,012.71 910,688.57 1,125,522.98 -214,834.41 80.91%

Expense

5000 · Administrative

5190 · Bank Fees 1,057.50 60.00 61.57 32.94 -60.00 1,152.01 1,749.98 -597.97 65.83%

5200 · Board of Directors

5210 · Board Meetings 20.92 125.00 148.71 294.63 2,000.02 -1,705.39 14.73%

5220 · Director Fees 187.50 262.50 375.00 825.00 1,650.00 -825.00 50.0%

Total 5200 · Board of Directors 20.92 312.50 262.50 523.71 1,119.63 3,650.02 -2,530.39 30.68%

5240 · CDPH Fees 7,749.98 -7,749.98

5250 · Conference Attendance 111.63 111.63 3,000.00 -2,888.37 3.72%

5270 · Information Systems 1,079.50 1,079.50 1,500.00 -420.50 71.97%

5300 · Insurance

5310 · Fidelity Bond 437.50 437.50 249.98 187.52 175.01%

5320 · Property & Liability Insurance 2,215.00 2,215.00 1,350.00 865.00 164.07%

Total 5300 · Insurance 437.50 2,215.00 2,652.50 1,599.98 1,052.52 165.78%

5350 · LAFCO Assessment 1,250.02 -1,250.02

5400 · Legal

 Page 6 of 10 See Executive Summary Document



 1:55 PM

 12/11/18

 Accrual Basis

 Montara Water & Sanitary District

 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water
 July 2018 through June 2019

TOTAL

Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul '18 - Jun 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5420 · Meeting Attendance, Legal 13.50 13.50 4,250.02 -4,236.52 0.32%

5430 · General Legal 1,550.00 1,550.00 30,000.00 -28,450.00 5.17%

5440 · Litigation 6,785.00 6,785.00

Total 5400 · Legal 8,348.50 8,348.50 34,250.02 -25,901.52 24.38%

5510 · Maintenance, Office 880.60 220.85 201.51 56.63 1,359.59 3,999.98 -2,640.39 33.99%

5530 · Memberships 269.00 3,370.00 3,639.00 10,250.02 -6,611.02 35.5%

5540 · Office Supplies 234.37 979.73 170.75 1,590.24 2,975.09 3,500.02 -524.93 85.0%

5550 · Postage 698.47 1,650.66 94.80 1,943.05 406.43 4,793.41 3,500.02 1,293.39 136.95%

5560 · Printing & Publishing 86.82 45.43 549.37 53.78 834.52 1,569.92 999.98 569.94 157.0%

5600 · Professional Services

5610 · Accounting 2,050.00 8,400.00 10,450.00 15,000.00 -4,550.00 69.67%

5620 · Audit 5,000.00 5,000.00 6,500.02 -1,500.02 76.92%

5630 · Consulting 1,923.25 375.00 3,385.56 5,683.81 17,499.98 -11,816.17 32.48%

5650 · Labor & HR Support 203.50 203.50 203.50 203.50 814.00 1,250.02 -436.02 65.12%

5660 · Payroll Services 71.08 73.30 73.30 73.30 72.19 363.17 500.02 -136.85 72.63%

Total 5600 · Professional Services 2,197.83 2,701.80 276.80 17,062.36 72.19 22,310.98 40,750.04 -18,439.06 54.75%

5710 · San Mateo Co. Tax Roll Charges 119.00 119.00

5720 · Telephone & Internet 2,085.07 2,637.72 154.49 4,378.96 233.35 9,489.59 12,500.02 -3,010.43 75.92%

5730 · Mileage Reimbursement 974.85 974.85 999.98 -25.13 97.49%

5740 · Reference Materials 399.98 -399.98

5790 · Other Adminstrative 176.00 176.00

5800 · Labor

5810 · CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan 2,994.72 2,955.32 2,708.19 2,981.44 3,052.06 14,691.73 21,514.50 -6,822.77 68.29%

5820 · Employee Benefits 12,335.62 6,167.81 3,809.11 6,167.81 6,167.81 34,648.16 40,029.00 -5,380.84 86.56%

5830 · Disability Insurance 280.51 280.51 280.51 280.51 1,122.04 2,144.02 -1,021.98 52.33%

5840 · Payroll Taxes 3,386.07 2,947.62 2,695.50 3,001.50 3,108.64 15,139.33 24,380.02 -9,240.69 62.1%

5850 · PARS 2,499.83 2,591.96 2,333.24 2,596.38 2,560.04 12,581.45 17,867.02 -5,285.57 70.42%

5900 · Wages

5910 · Management 9,584.72 8,381.32 8,381.32 8,381.32 8,381.33 43,110.01 51,862.50 -8,752.49 83.12%

5920 · Staff 29,431.49 31,019.87 27,262.39 31,063.11 30,047.42 148,824.28 213,402.00 -64,577.72 69.74%

5930 · Staff Certification 600.00 650.00 650.00 650.00 950.00 3,500.00 5,700.00 -2,200.00 61.4%

5940 · Staff Overtime 5,183.35 3,200.36 3,770.54 3,853.31 5,927.44 21,935.00 34,667.02 -12,732.02 63.27%

5950 · Staff Standby 2,034.26 2,072.54 1,964.04 2,080.21 2,122.46 10,273.51 13,061.48 -2,787.97 78.66%

Total 5900 · Wages 46,833.82 45,324.09 42,028.29 46,027.95 47,428.65 227,642.80 318,693.00 -91,050.20 71.43%

5960 · Worker's Comp Insurance 11,658.52 -11,658.52

 Page 7 of 10 See Executive Summary Document



 1:55 PM

 12/11/18

 Accrual Basis

 Montara Water & Sanitary District

 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water
 July 2018 through June 2019

TOTAL

Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul '18 - Jun 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Total 5800 · Labor 68,330.57 60,267.31 53,854.84 61,055.59 62,317.20 305,825.51 436,286.08 -130,460.57 70.1%

Total 5000 · Administrative 75,902.68 70,242.25 57,860.97 99,830.49 63,860.32 367,696.71 567,936.12 -200,239.41 64.74%

6000 · Operations

6160 · Backflow Prevention 500.02 -500.02

6170 · Claims, Property Damage 21.75 21.75 5,000.02 -4,978.27 0.44%

6180 · Communications

6185 · SCADA Maintenance 6,300.00 2,503.19 8,803.19 5,000.02 3,803.17 176.06%

Total 6180 · Communications 6,300.00 2,503.19 8,803.19 5,000.02 3,803.17 176.06%

6195 · Education & Training 1,498.58 200.00 166.09 522.55 2,387.22 4,500.00 -2,112.78 53.05%

6200 · Engineering

6210 · Meeting Attendance, Engineering 249.98 -249.98

6220 · General Engineering 1,785.00 2,033.75 4,149.30 7,968.05 22,500.00 -14,531.95 35.41%

6230 · Water Quality Engineering 38,201.29 21,065.50 39,120.00 98,386.79 50,000.02 48,386.77 196.77%

Total 6200 · Engineering 39,986.29 23,099.25 43,269.30 106,354.84 72,750.00 33,604.84 146.19%

6320 · Equipment & Tools, Expensed 1,525.40 1,001.58 305.35 1,013.20 207.68 4,053.21 2,499.98 1,553.23 162.13%

6330 · Facilities

6335 · Alarm Services 127.02 52.50 127.02 306.54 399.98 -93.44 76.64%

6337 · Landscaping 497.95 483.00 483.00 483.00 1,946.95 3,000.00 -1,053.05 64.9%

6330 · Facilities - Other

Total 6330 · Facilities 127.02 497.95 535.50 610.02 483.00 2,253.49 3,399.98 -1,146.49 66.28%

6370 · Lab Supplies & Equipment 460.08 493.92 954.00 999.98 -45.98 95.4%

6400 · Pumping

6410 · Pumping Fuel & Electricity 6,089.22 6,538.30 1,571.22 10,330.63 1,937.73 26,467.10 45,000.00 -18,532.90 58.82%

6420 · Pumping Maintenance, Generators 393.39 428.62 822.01 5,000.02 -4,178.01 16.44%

6430 · Pumping Maintenance, General 207.57 207.57 2,499.98 -2,292.41 8.3%

6440 · Pumping Equipment, Expensed 350.02 -350.02

Total 6400 · Pumping 6,089.22 7,139.26 1,999.84 10,330.63 1,937.73 27,496.68 52,850.02 -25,353.34 52.03%

6500 · Supply

6510 · Maintenance, Raw Water Mains 1,445.65 35.85 1,481.50 1,050.00 431.50 141.1%

6520 · Maintenance, Wells 2,189.25 192.25 2,381.50 5,000.02 -2,618.52 47.63%

6530 · Water Purchases 6,781.42 6,781.42 20,000.02 -13,218.60 33.91%

Total 6500 · Supply 2,189.25 8,419.32 35.85 10,644.42 26,050.04 -15,405.62 40.86%

 Page 8 of 10 See Executive Summary Document



 1:55 PM

 12/11/18

 Accrual Basis

 Montara Water & Sanitary District

 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water
 July 2018 through June 2019

TOTAL

Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul '18 - Jun 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

6600 · Collection/Transmission

6610 · Hydrants -570.00 -570.00 500.02 -1,070.02 -114.0%

6620 · Maintenance, Water Mains 6,313.73 6,374.76 12,688.49 24,999.98 -12,311.49 50.75%

6630 · Maintenance, Water Svc Lines 9,999.98 -9,999.98

6640 · Maintenance, Tanks 500.02 -500.02

6650 · Maint., Distribution General 3,500.02 -3,500.02

6670 · Meters 2,214.89 2,214.89 1,250.02 964.87 177.19%

6600 · Collection/Transmission - Other

Total 6600 · Collection/Transmission 5,743.73 8,589.65 14,333.38 40,750.04 -26,416.66 35.17%

6700 · Treatment

6710 · Chemicals & Filtering 193.52 292.50 570.92 1,056.94 15,000.00 -13,943.06 7.05%

6720 · Maintenance, Treatment Equip. 7.16 10.09 9,686.80 696.40 10,400.45 2,000.02 8,400.43 520.02%

6730 · Treatment Analysis 61.80 374.60 6,598.10 602.60 7,637.10 21,000.00 -13,362.90 36.37%

6700 · Treatment - Other

Total 6700 · Treatment 68.96 578.21 16,577.40 1,869.92 19,094.49 38,000.02 -18,905.53 50.25%

6770 · Uniforms 1,024.15 814.00 905.15 829.35 3,572.65 6,000.00 -2,427.35 59.54%

6800 · Vehicles

6810 · Fuel 665.72 594.74 -89.21 1,218.67 2,389.92 3,999.98 -1,610.06 59.75%

6820 · Truck Equipment, Expensed 108.64 108.64 500.02 -391.38 21.73%

6830 · Truck Repairs 178.20 595.30 581.16 42.88 1,397.54 2,499.98 -1,102.44 55.9%

Total 6800 · Vehicles 843.92 1,190.04 491.95 1,370.19 3,896.10 6,999.98 -3,103.88 55.66%

6890 · Other Operations 43.48 43.48

Total 6000 · Operations 11,177.25 66,122.14 52,670.18 71,275.07 2,664.26 203,908.90 265,300.10 -61,391.20 76.86%

Total Expense 87,079.93 136,364.39 110,531.15 171,105.56 66,524.58 571,605.61 833,236.22 -261,630.61 68.6%

Net Ordinary Income 55,492.23 88,311.87 74,369.94 -10,579.21 131,488.13 339,082.96 292,286.76 46,796.20 116.01%

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

7000 · Capital Account Revenues

7100 · Connection Fees

7110 · Connection Fees (New Constr) 17,457.00 19,203.00 36,660.00 86,510.02 -49,850.02 42.38%

7130 · Conn. Fees, PFP (New Constr) 8,706.00 11,910.73 8,706.00 29,322.73 39,999.98 -10,677.25 73.31%

7140 · Conn. Fees, PFP (Remodel) 2,032.40 2,032.40

 Page 9 of 10 See Executive Summary Document



 1:55 PM

 12/11/18

 Accrual Basis

 Montara Water & Sanitary District

 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water
 July 2018 through June 2019

TOTAL

Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul '18 - Jun 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Total 7100 · Connection Fees 28,195.40 11,910.73 27,909.00 68,015.13 126,510.00 -58,494.87 53.76%

7600 · Bond Revenues, G.O. 1,412.72 1,349.22 17,178.51 19,940.45 575,217.98 -555,277.53 3.47%

Total 7000 · Capital Account Revenues 28,195.40 13,323.45 29,258.22 17,178.51 87,955.58 701,727.98 -613,772.40 12.53%

Total Other Income 28,195.40 13,323.45 29,258.22 17,178.51 87,955.58 701,727.98 -613,772.40 12.53%

Other Expense

8000 · Capital Improvement Program

8100 · Water 5,337.50 11,684.01 34,053.37 1,260.00 52,334.88 240,500.02 -188,165.14 21.76%

Total 8000 · Capital Improvement Program 5,337.50 11,684.01 34,053.37 1,260.00 52,334.88 240,500.02 -188,165.14 21.76%

9000 · Capital Account Expenses

9075 · PFP Connection Expenses 6,135.00 6,135.00

9100 · Interest Expense - GO Bonds 20,593.81 20,593.81 127,943.00 -107,349.19 16.1%

9125 · PNC Equipment Lease Interest 1,460.19 2,890.10 2,847.56 7,197.85 8,540.57 -1,342.72 84.28%

9150 · SRF Loan 38,537.56 -38,537.56

9210 · Conservation Program/Rebates 300.00 400.00 700.00 999.98 -299.98 70.0%

Total 9000 · Capital Account Expenses 1,460.19 23,783.91 9,382.56 34,626.66 176,021.11 -141,394.45 19.67%

Total Other Expense 1,460.19 29,121.41 11,684.01 43,435.93 1,260.00 86,961.54 416,521.13 -329,559.59 20.88%

Net Other Income -1,460.19 -926.01 1,639.44 -14,177.71 15,918.51 994.04 285,206.85 -284,212.81 0.35%

Net Income 54,032.04 87,385.86 76,009.38 -24,756.92 147,406.64 340,077.00 577,493.61 -237,416.61 58.89%

 Page 10 of 10 See Executive Summary Document



2:01 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

12/11/18 Funds Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of November 30, 2018

Page 1

Sewer Water TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

Sewer - Bank Accounts

Wells Fargo Operating - Sewer 1,531,356.14 0.00 1,531,356.14

LAIF Investment Fund

Capital Reserve 3,810,640.78 0.00 3,810,640.78

Connection Fees Reserve 194,600.00 0.00 194,600.00

Operating Reserve 406,882.00 0.00 406,882.00

Total LAIF Investment Fund 4,412,122.78 0.00 4,412,122.78

Total Sewer - Bank Accounts 5,943,478.92 0.00 5,943,478.92

Water - Bank Accounts

Wells Fargo Operating - Water 0.00 945,981.14 945,981.14

Capital Reserve 0.00 398,249.00 398,249.00

Operating Reserve 0.00 46,009.00 46,009.00

SRF Reserve 0.00 48,222.00 48,222.00

Restricted Cash

Acq & Improv Fund 0.00 346.13 346.13

Connection Fees Reserve 0.00 253,020.00 253,020.00

GO Bonds Fund 0.00 940,709.77 940,709.77

Total Restricted Cash 0.00 1,194,075.90 1,194,075.90

Total Water - Bank Accounts 0.00 2,632,537.04 2,632,537.04

Total Checking/Savings 5,943,478.92 2,632,537.04 8,576,015.96

Accounts Receivable

Sewer - Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable -3,236.74 0.00 -3,236.74

Sewer - Accounts Receivable - Ot… 2,559.74 0.00 2,559.74

Total Sewer - Accounts Receivable -677.00 0.00 -677.00

Water - Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable 0.00 -4,270.74 -4,270.74

Accounts Rec. - Backflow 0.00 14,081.11 14,081.11

Accounts Rec. - Water Residents 0.00 201,315.10 201,315.10

Unbilled Water Receivables 0.00 259,634.72 259,634.72

Total Water - Accounts Receivable 0.00 470,760.19 470,760.19

Total Accounts Receivable -677.00 470,760.19 470,083.19

Other Current Assets

Due from Kathryn Slater-Carter 232.31 382.31 614.62

Maint/Parts Inventory 0.00 42,656.32 42,656.32

Prepaid Refuse Charges 16,968.67 0.00 16,968.67

Total Other Current Assets 17,200.98 43,038.63 60,239.61

Total Current Assets 5,960,002.90 3,146,335.86 9,106,338.76

Fixed Assets

Sewer - Fixed Assets

General Plant 3,690,152.50 0.00 3,690,152.50

Land 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00

Other Capital Improv.

Sewer-Original Cost 685,599.18 0.00 685,599.18

Other Cap. Improv. 2,564,810.39 0.00 2,564,810.39

Total Other Capital Improv. 3,250,409.57 0.00 3,250,409.57



2:01 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

12/11/18 Funds Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of November 30, 2018

Page 2

Seal Cove Collection System 995,505.00 0.00 995,505.00

Sewage Collection Facility

Collection Facility - Org. Cost 1,349,064.00 0.00 1,349,064.00

Collection Facility - Other 3,991,243.33 0.00 3,991,243.33

Total Sewage Collection Facility 5,340,307.33 0.00 5,340,307.33

Treatment Facility 244,539.84 0.00 244,539.84

Accumulated Depreciation -8,463,505.00 0.00 -8,463,505.00

Total Sewer - Fixed Assets 5,062,409.24 0.00 5,062,409.24

Water - Fixed Assets

General Plant 0.00 26,866,754.62 26,866,754.62

Land & Easements 0.00 734,500.00 734,500.00

Surface Water Rights 0.00 300,000.00 300,000.00

Water Meters 0.00 1,058,985.00 1,058,985.00

Fixed Assets - Other 0.00 48,171.78 48,171.78

Accumulated Depreciation 0.00 -10,818,472.00 -10,818,472.00

Total Water - Fixed Assets 0.00 18,189,939.40 18,189,939.40

Total Fixed Assets 5,062,409.24 18,189,939.40 23,252,348.64

Other Assets

Sewer - Other Assets

Def'd Amts Related to Pensions 101,367.00 0.00 101,367.00

Due from Water Fund -450,349.95 0.00 -450,349.95

Joint Power Authority

SAM - Orig Collection Facility 981,592.00 0.00 981,592.00

SAM - Expansion 1,705,955.08 0.00 1,705,955.08

Total Joint Power Authority 2,687,547.08 0.00 2,687,547.08

Total Sewer - Other Assets 2,338,564.13 0.00 2,338,564.13

Water - Other Assets

Def'd Amts Related to Pensions 0.00 190,536.00 190,536.00

Bond Acquisition Cost OID 0.00 47,864.40 47,864.40

Bond Issue Cost 0.00 51,409.55 51,409.55

Total Water - Other Assets 0.00 289,809.95 289,809.95

Total Other Assets 2,338,564.13 289,809.95 2,628,374.08

TOTAL ASSETS 13,360,976.27 21,626,085.21 34,987,061.48

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable - Sewer -163,586.09 0.00 -163,586.09

Accounts Payable - Water 0.00 281,171.49 281,171.49

Total Accounts Payable -163,586.09 281,171.49 117,585.40

Other Current Liabilities

Water - Net Pension Liability 0.00 -52,155.00 -52,155.00

Sewer - Net Pension Liability -27,826.00 0.00 -27,826.00

Sewer - Current Liabilities

Accrued Vacations 5,532.92 0.00 5,532.92

Deposits Payable 25,348.73 0.00 25,348.73

PNC Equip. Loan - S/T 30,726.50 0.00 30,726.50

Total Sewer - Current Liabilities 61,608.15 0.00 61,608.15



2:01 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

12/11/18 Funds Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of November 30, 2018

Page 3

Water - Current Liabilities

Accrued Vacations 0.00 14,310.99 14,310.99

Deposits Payable 0.00 46,507.23 46,507.23

GO Bonds - S/T 0.00 450,640.59 450,640.59

PFP Water Deposits 0.00 4,302.50 4,302.50

PNC Equip. Loan - S/T 0.00 30,726.48 30,726.48

SRF Loan Payable X102 - Current 0.00 84,472.84 84,472.84

SRF Loan Payable X109 - Current 0.00 166,429.73 166,429.73

Total Water - Current Liabilities 0.00 797,390.36 797,390.36

Payroll Liabilities

Employee Benefits Payable 12,550.33 0.00 12,550.33

Total Payroll Liabilities 12,550.33 0.00 12,550.33

Total Other Current Liabilities 46,332.48 745,235.36 791,567.84

Total Current Liabilities -117,253.61 1,026,406.85 909,153.24

Long Term Liabilities

Sewer - Long Term Liabilities

Accrued Vacations 8,801.76 0.00 8,801.76

I-Bank Loan 755,347.13 0.00 755,347.13

PNC Equip. Loan - L/T 541,886.32 0.00 541,886.32

Total Sewer - Long Term Liabilities 1,306,035.21 0.00 1,306,035.21

Water - Long Term Liabilities

Accrued Vacations 0.00 10,041.80 10,041.80

Deferred on Refunding 0.00 -187,712.00 -187,712.00

Due to Sewer Fund 0.00 -450,349.95 -450,349.95

GO Bonds - L/T 0.00 9,705,129.52 9,705,129.52

PNC Equip. Loan - L/T 0.00 541,886.37 541,886.37

SRF Loan Payable - X102 0.00 42,900.63 42,900.63

SRF Loan Payable - X109 0.00 3,214,657.45 3,214,657.45

Total Water - Long Term Liabilities 0.00 12,876,553.82 12,876,553.82

Deferred Inflows (Pensions)

Sewer 21,452.00 0.00 21,452.00

Water 0.00 40,208.00 40,208.00

Total Deferred Inflows (Pensions) 21,452.00 40,208.00 61,660.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 1,327,487.21 12,916,761.82 14,244,249.03

Total Liabilities 1,210,233.60 13,943,168.67 15,153,402.27

Equity

Sewer - Equity Accounts

Capital Assets Net 3,408,252.20 0.00 3,408,252.20

Fund Balance - Unrestricted 8,646,292.87 0.00 8,646,292.87

Retained Earnings 168,446.42 0.00 168,446.42

Total Sewer - Equity Accounts 12,222,991.49 0.00 12,222,991.49

Water - Equity Accounts

Capital Assets Net 0.00 2,868,858.70 2,868,858.70

Restricted Debt Service 0.00 1,384,997.90 1,384,997.90

Unrestricted 0.00 -1,562,801.59 -1,562,801.59

Retained Earnings 0.00 -168,446.42 -168,446.42

Total Water - Equity Accounts 0.00 2,522,608.59 2,522,608.59

Equity Adjustment Account 1,157,836.94 4,820,230.95 5,978,067.89

Net Income -1,230,085.76 340,077.00 -890,008.76

Total Equity 12,150,742.67 7,682,916.54 19,833,659.21

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 13,360,976.27 21,626,085.21 34,987,061.48



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 
          For Meeting Of:  January 17, 2019 

 
                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager  

   
SUBJECT:   SAM Flow Report for November 2018 
 
 
The Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside (SAM) has prepared the following attached 
reports for the SAM Board of Directors and the California Regional Water Quality 
Control Board: 
 
• Flow Report for November 2018. 
 
• Collection System Monthly Overflow Report – November 2018. 
 
The Average Daily Flow for Montara was 0.243 MGD in November 2018.  There 
was no reportable overflow in November in the Montara System. SAM indicates 
there were 4.08 inches of rain in November 2018.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
Review and file.  
 
 
Attachments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

















M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of: January 17, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager  

  

SUBJECT:   Review of Current Investment Portfolio 

 
 
The District’s Investment Policy and Guidelines requires that the Board review 
the status of the current investment portfolio. The following summarizes the 
status of these accounts: 
 

➢ The District has most of its idle sewer funds deposited in the State 
of California’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). The Monthly 
Average interest rate for December 2018 the rate was 2.291. 

 
  

 

➢ The District has one checking account with Wells Fargo Bank for 
Water and Sewer Funds that is largely backed by Federal securities. 

 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
District staff attempts to cash manage idle funds in LAIF as long as possible 
before transferring to the Wells Fargo checking accounts for disbursements.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 For Meeting Of: January 17th, 2019 

TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 FROM:  Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Monthly Water Production Report 

The attached two charts summarize the monthly water production for 
the District. 
The first shows a consolidated from all sources by month.  The 
second shows each water source the District uses, both wells and 
surface water.  The production is shown in gallons of water produced. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

No action is required.  These reports are provided for the Board’s information 
only.  

Attachments: 2 



January February March April May June July August September October November December
Total Production (Gallons) 7,596,086 7,350,086 7,747,507 7,092,702 9,767,742 9,989,331 9,744,447 9,254,964 8,763,594 8,811,643 8,588,022

7,596,086
7,350,086

7,747,507

7,092,702

9,767,742
9,989,331

9,744,447

9,254,964

8,763,594 8,811,643
8,588,022

G
AL

LO
N

S

MONTH

TOTAL PRODUCTION 2018(GALLONS)



Annual Water Production 2018

PILLAR RIDGE NORTH
AIRPORT WELL

SOUTH
AIRPORT WELL

AIRPORT WELL
#3 DRAKE WELL PORTOLA

WELL #1
PORTOLA
WELL #3

PORTOLA
WELL #4

WAGNER WELL
#3

ALTA VISTA
WELL

MONTARA
SURFACE DIV.

January 897,174 14,170 0 0 825,312 0 1,529,950 0 1,526,980 2,054,000 748,500

February 268,696 33,440 0 0 541,900 0 1,317,830 0 1,326,220 2,098,500 1,763,500

March 850,997 41,140 0 0 872,550 2,650 1,370,380 0 1,820,890 2,279,100 509,800

April 978,833 20,120 0 0 737,742 0 1,407,870 0 1,603,610 1,403,400 1,789,100

May 1,071,704 96,020 0 0 845,428 0 1,521,870 0 1,436,120 2,416,800 2,379,800

June 1,061,449 1,090 0 0 840,872 0 1,370,770 0 1,862,350 2,722,000 2,130,800

July 1,162,071 5,280 0 0 687,756 0 1,389,490 0 1,800,950 2,514,100 2,184,800

August 1,016,068 2,020 0 0 728,136 0 1,317,360 0 1,721,580 2,420,900 2,048,900

September 909,478 170,780 0 0 809,696 0 1,505,160 0 1,795,280 3,047,800 525,400

October 1,025,433 19,710 0 0 762,420 0 1,475,910 0 1,756,770 2,548,800 1,222,600

November 1,012,238 4,350 0 0 819,644 0 1,283,450 0 1,797,840 2,816,200 854,300

December

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

3,500,000
GA

LL
O

N
S



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 For Meeting of: January 17th, 2019 

TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 FROM:  Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Rain Report 

The attached chart shows the monthly rainfall at Alta Vista Treatment 
Plant for the current and prior water years along with seven-year 
average rain fall. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

No action is required.  These reports are provided for the Board’s 
information only.  

Attachments: 2 



Annual Cumulative Rainfall  

 

 

 



Monthly Cumulative Rainfall  
 

 



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 For Meeting Of: January 17th, 2019 

TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 FROM:  Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Monthly Solar Energy Report 

The attached chart summarizes the monthly solar production at 
the Alta Vista Array.  Since the installation of the solar panels 
the District produced 42165 kWh and saved 71680 lbs of CO2.

RECOMMENDATION: 

No action is required.  This information is provided for the Board’s 
information only.  

Attachments: 1 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
total kWh 79 174 360 272 335 266 267 214 206 167 114

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

KW
H

SOLAR ENERGY PRODUCED IN 2018 (kWh)



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 
          For Meeting Of:  January 17, 2019 

 
                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

  
SUBJECT:   Monthly Public Agency Retirement Service 

Report for October 2018. 
 

The District has received the monthly PARS report for October 2018. 
 
 
Contributions are calculated on a bi-weekly basis, and contributions are made on 
a monthly basis.  
 
The following monthly reports are submitted as consent agenda items on a 
monthly basis. 
   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 This is for Board information only. 
 
Attachment 
 





September 2018 PARS Statement
Detail Information

PARS Beginning Balance as of October 1, 2018 680,720.49$  

Contributions:

September 15, 2018 Calculation Sewer Water Total

Wages  25,608.03$      8,749.22$     16,858.82$   25,608.03$  

Employer ‐ 6.92% 1,772.08$        605.45$         1,166.63$     1,772.08$    
Employee ‐ 7.75% 1,336.04$       
Contributions Subtotal 3,108.11$       

September 30, 2018 Calculation Sewer Water Total

Wages  25,608.03$      8,749.22$     16,858.82$   25,608.03$  

Employer ‐ 6.92% 1,772.08$        605.45$         1,166.63$     1,772.08$    
Employee ‐ 7.75% 1,336.04$       
Contributions Subtotal 3,108.11$       

Rounding

Total Contributions thru September 6,216.23$       
Rounding ‐$                 

6,216.23$       

Earnings ($39,710.79)

Expenses (320.22)$         

Distributions (1,063.36)$     

PARS Ending Balance as of October 31 645,842.34$  

Fund Impact ‐ PARS Wages



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  January 17, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

 

  

SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning 
Certification of the Results of the November 6, 
2018 Statewide General Election 

 

 

The Certificate of the Chief Elections Officer of San Mateo County for the 
November 2018 elections has been received and is attached. It certifies that the 
following candidates have been elected to the Office of Director of the Montara 
Water and Sanitary District for four-year terms: 
 

➢ Jim Harvey 
➢ Ric Lohman 
➢ Eric Marshall 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adopt RESOLUTION NO.______________, RESOLUTION DECLARING 
RESULTS OF DISTRICT ELECTION HELD ON NOVEMBER 6, 2018.   
 
Attachments 
 

















M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  January 17, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

  

SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning the 
Administration of the Oath of Office to the Newly 
Elected Board Members. 

 

 

The oath of office will be administered to the newly elected board members Jim 
Harvey, Ric Lohman, and Eric Marshall for four-year terms.  
 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize the President Pro-Tem to administer the oath of office to the above-
named elected officials for four-year terms. 
 
 
Attachment  
 
 
 



OATH of OFFICE 
 
 
 

I, ________________________, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will 
support and defend the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of 
the State of California against all enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear 
true faith and allegiance to the Constitution of the United States and the 
Constitution of the State of California; that I take this obligation freely, without any 
mental reservation or purpose of evasion; and that I will well and faithfully 
discharge the duties upon which I am about to enter. 
 
 
Office: Board Member, Montara Water and Sanitary District 
 
 
 __________________________ 
  
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this _________ 
day of _____________________, 20__,  
 
_________________________________ 
Secretary, Montara Water and Sanitary District   



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  January 17, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

  

SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning 
Appointment of Board Officers and Committee 
Assignments for 2019 

 

 

The attached chart indicates the current positions and committee assignments for 
each Board member.  There is a space to select the person or persons for each 
such position for this calendar year. The assignments will become effective 
January 2019.    
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Appoint District Officers and Committee assignments for 2019.   
 
Attachment 
 



MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICT 

   BOARD OFFICERS, AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES 
AND COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

POSITION APPOINTMENTS FOR 
2018 

 

CURRENT 
APPOINTMENTS 

2019 

President Dwight Wilson 
 

 

President Pro Tem Scott Boyd 
 

 

Secretary Kathryn Slater-Carter 
 

 

Secretary Pro Tem Alternates: 
Scott Boyd 
Bill Huber 

Jim Harvey 

 

Treasurer Bill Huber 
 

 

 
 

AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES 
 

AGENCY APPOINTMENTS FOR 
2018 

CURRENT 
APPOINTMENTS 

2019  

SAM 
Representatives 

Scott Boyd 
 

 

 Kathryn Slater-Carter  

 Alternates: 
Bill Huber  

Jim Harvey 

 

CSDA Member Kathryn Slater-Carter  

 Scott Boyd (Alternate)  

 Jim Harvey (Alternate)  

 Bill Huber (Alternate)  

 Dwight Wilson (Alternate) 
 

 

ACWA Member Dwight Wilson  

 



MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICT 

STANDING COMMITTEES 
 

COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS FOR 
2018 

CURRENT 
APPOINTMENTS  

2019 

Budget and 
Finance 

Bill Huber  

 Kathryn Slater-Carter  

Personnel Scott Boyd  

 Dwight Wilson  

 

 
AD HOC COMMITTEES 

 

COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS FOR 
2018 

CURRENT 
APPOINTMENTS  

2019 

Recycling/Solid 
Waste  

Kathryn Slater-Carter  

 Bill Huber  

WEB  Scott Boyd  

 Bill Huber  

Outreach/  
Newsletter 

Kathryn Slater-Carter  

 Bill Huber  

Legislative  Scott Boyd  

 Kathryn Slater-Carter  

CCWD Committee Jim Harvey  

 Bill Huber  

Recycled Water  Bill Huber  

   

Wireless Lease Scott Boyd  

 Kathryn Slater-Carter  

Planning Committee 
(PWP) 

Scott Boyd 
 

Kathryn Slater-Carter 

 

   
  

 
 



MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICT 

AD HOC COMMITTEES 
 

COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS FOR 
2018 

CURRENT 
APPOINTMENTS  

2019 

Big Wave Kathryn Slater-Carter 
 

Dwight Wilson 

 

Rate Study  
 

Jim Harvey 
 

Kathryn Slater-Carter 

 

 
Connection Fee 
Committee 

Scott Boyd 
Kathryn Slater-Carter 
Clemens Heldmaier 

 

Strategic Plan 
Progress 

Kathryn Slater-Carter 
Dwight Wilson 

 

 
 
 
Note:  Terms for all positions begin January 1, 2019 and end December 31, 2019 unless otherwise indicated by the Board 
of Directors.   

 



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  January 17, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

  

SUBJECT:   Review and Response to Resident Questions 

about Fire Flow.  

 

Gregg Dieguez, a Montara resident, submitted several questions about fire flow to 
the District.  In consulting with the District Engineer, the following responses are 
recommended: 

1.     With the projected connection growth, how is pressure maintained throughout 
the system to fight fires? 

Distribution system pressures to provide regular water service and fight fires are 
maintained by the MWSD existing storage tanks’ elevations.  These are fixed 
elevations and are not dependent on the water consumption. 

 

2.     Is a 2-hour design(er) fire a reasonable depiction of the risks we face?  What 
other scenarios would it be prudent to plan for? 

MWSD Board of Directors had selected this very conservative (high) design fire 
scenario for sizing the District’s storage tanks: 2,000 gallons per minute (gpm) for 
2 hours. For comparison, the Fire Code prescribes that the District must design 
their storage facilities for a fire that will use 750 gpm for 1.5 hours. Therefore, while 
the Fire Code allows the District to design storage facilities based on a significantly 
lower fire demand, the Board opted to design their storage facilities based on a fire 
that will require 2,000 gpm for 2 hours. 

 

3.     Why isn’t the “fire reserve” reserved and deducted from planned capacity in 
projections of how many connections MWSD could support? 

The “fire reserve” is not a capacity number, it is a storage reserve dedicated to fire 
fighting.  It is unrelated to the number of connections existing or future.  It is related 
to the design fire as discussed above. 

 

4.     How does the “real peak fire reserve” compare to mid-year and end of year 
storage at each tank?  How would the water be directed to the likely fire areas? 

The District relies on Montara Creek and groundwater wells for its water supply 
and has no storage reservoirs or lakes.  The tanks are replenished daily, not 
seasonally, except for the fire storage that is never used unless there is a fire.  



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  January 17, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 
The distribution system is designed to deliver water from fire storage to any point 
in the system; the ability of the distribution system to deliver adequate flow and 
pressure is tested through hydraulic modeling and hydrant tests. Improvements 
are made annually to improve the capacity of the system to deliver increased fire 
flows.  

 

5.     Would a fire in Rancho Corral de Tierra affect our access to and use of water 
pumped and store there or other locations?  How is any fire-related outage factored 
into our available capacity or reliable water supply? 

Rancho Corral de Tierra relies on its own water supply and is not a District 
customer.  Specific “fire-related” outages are not factored in the water supply 
analyses as they do not really exist.  The planning analyses take into consideration 
the largest source out of service to estimate the reliable water supply. 

 

6.     What actions are being taken to remedy the 2017 Master Plan note that “39-
percent of the nodes in the distribution system were unable to provide adequate 
fire flow”? 

The District plans projects and improvements every year and those are outlined in 
the MWSD Water System Capital Improvements Program (CIP), which is a 10-
year projection of system improvements that informs the District’s annual budget. 

 

The District Water Engineer will be present. CalFire was invited to attend the 
meeting and provide additional comments.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Respond to Gregg Dieguez as noted above. 
 



Gregg, 
 
Please see my answers below: 
 
 

I want to know how much water is actually available each month at a given point in time.  I 

do have the master plan.  Are you saying that even in a dry month late in the year the 
tanks are ALWAYS FULL? 
 

Yes. The tanks are always (almost) full all year around. Tank levels fluctuate only 
slightly with daily demand that is constantly offset by wells that turn on according to 
demand. 
 
 
 

Fine on the agenda delay.  I have also brought it up with the MCC and CalFire.  I'll forward 
more issues/questions soon.  

 

You aware of residents' reports that a recent fire in Moss Beach (which was well-responded 
to by 10 engines (!?!)) found the nearest hydrant inadequate in pressure and had to be 

served from another hydrant further away? 
 

According to the responding Battalion Chief, the change from one hydrant to the other 
was due to engine access not performance. Both hydrants flow significantly above 
requirements. 
 

Do you have consumption statistics for the recent fires in Moss Beach? 
 

Vue De Mar Fire 47,000 gallons, 96 Terrace Fire 65,000 gallons. Both numbers are fire 
flow and demand added together. According to CalFire estimate the actual water used 
for the fires was significantly less. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Clemens 

 
Clemens Heldmaier 
 

General Manager 
 

Montara Water & Sanitary District 

 

8888 Cabrillo Hwy 
 

Montara, CA 94037 
 

PHONE:  650-728-3545 

 

FAX:   650-728-8556 
 

mwsd@coastside.net 
 
 
 
 

mailto:mwsd@coastside.net


 
PRIVILEGED COMMUNICATION: 
 

 
 
The information contained in this message is privileged and confidential. It 
is intended only to be read by the individual or entity named above or their 
designee. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you 
are on notice that any distribution of this message, in any form, is 
strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please 
immediately notify the sender and delete or destroy any copy of this 
message. 
 
 
On Nov 26, 2018, at 12:49 PM, Gregg Dieguez <gadieguez@live.com> wrote: 
 

I want to know how much water is actually available each month at a given point in time.  I 
do have the master plan.  Are you saying that even in a dry month late in the year the 

tanks are ALWAYS FULL? 
 
 

Fine on the agenda delay.  I have also brought it up with the MCC and CalFire.  I'll forward 

more issues/questions soon.  

 
You aware of residents' reports that a recent fire in Moss Beach (which was well-responded 

to by 10 engines (!?!)) found the nearest hydrant inadequate in pressure and had to be 
served from another hydrant further away? 

 

Do you have consumption statistics for the recent fires in Moss Beach? 
 

Thanks, 
 

Gregg Dieguez 

P.O. Box 370404  

Montara, CA 94037 

(650) 544-0714 Cell 

 

 

From: Clemens <mwsd@coastside.net> 
Sent: Monday, November 26, 2018 9:05 AM 
To: Gregg Dieguez 
Subject: Re: MWSD Water Storage? 

  

Gregg, 
 
It would be helpful to understand what the purpose of your question is. Operationally it 
doesn’t make sense. I assume you aren’t asking for the max. storage levels in tanks, 
since you can find it easily in the Master Plan, correct? 
 
Water tanks buffer the difference between demand and production in a water system. In 
other words, the tanks are always at their max. level, i.e. full, unless temporary demand 
exceeds well production. Small variations in levels are calculated into production 
numbers. 
 

mailto:gadieguez@live.com
tel:(650)%20544-0714
mailto:mwsd@coastside.net


If this doesn’t help, please be more specific with the nature of your question. 
 
On a different note, we were hoping to use your questions about the communities fire 
preparedness for a full agenda item at the December 6 meeting. Due to some 
complications with scheduling, it looks like we need to move the item to January. Again I 
hope this will be a more comprehensive look at the new normal in California, hopefully 
with input from CalFire. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Clemens 
 
 
 
 

Clemens Heldmaier 
 

General Manager 
 

Montara Water & Sanitary District 
 

8888 Cabrillo Hwy 

 

Montara, CA 94037 
 

PHONE:  650-728-3545 
 

FAX:   650-728-8556 
 

mwsd@coastside.net 
 
 
 
 
 
PRIVILEGED COMMUNICATION: 
 
 
 
The information contained in this message is privileged and confidential. It 

is intended only to be read by the individual or entity named above or their 
designee. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you 
are on notice that any distribution of this message, in any form, is 
strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please 
immediately notify the sender and delete or destroy any copy of this 
message. 
 
 
On Nov 25, 2018, at 9:00 PM, Gregg Dieguez <gadieguez@live.com> wrote: 
 

Clemens, 

 

I've reviewed a few meeting packets but I can't find the water storage levels by tank, 
expecting monthly reports.  I can find sewer flows, and water PRODUCTION, but not the 

levels RETAINED.  Can you point me to the source? 
 

tel:650-728-3545
tel:650-728-8556
mailto:mwsd@coastside.net
mailto:gadieguez@live.com


Gregg Dieguez 

P.O. Box 370404  

Montara, CA 94037 
(650) 544-0714 Cell 

 

tel:(650)%20544-0714


M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  January 17, 2018 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager  

  

SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning 

Adoption of Connection Charge Report 

 

 

Senate Bill 1760 revised a section of the Government Code concerning 
development fees and charges in 1999.  It requires local governments to make 
available to the public information about capacity charges, what they are used for 
and whether or not any are available for refund.  It provides that any water or 
sewer connection charges shall not exceed the estimated reasonable cost of 
providing the service for which the charge is imposed.  The attached Annual 
Connection Charge Report provides a summary of the connection charge 
revenue received for previous fiscal years through FY 2017-18, and indicates 
how that money is allocated. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize the filing of the Annual Connection Report with the District Clerk. 
 
Attachment 
 
 



      ANNUAL WATER CONNECTION CHARGE REPORT
                 Montara Water and Sanitary District

       June 30, 2018

The District, in compliance with Section 66013 of the Government Code in reviewing

the water and sewer connection charges and fees, finds as follows: 

Connection

Connection Fees Spent

Year Fees on Capital Remaining

Ending Collected Projects Balance

6/30/2018 284,556.00$     284,556.00$     $0.00

6/30/2017 208,785.00$     208,785.00$     $0.00

6/30/2016 139,419.00$     139,419.00$     $0.00

6/30/2015 172,492.12$     172,492.12$     $0.00

6/30/2014 107,520.30$     107,520.30$     $0.00

6/30/2013 74,314.87$        74,314.87$        $0.00

6/30/2012 131,890.00$     131,890.00$     $0.00

6/30/2011 18,382.00$        18,382.00$        $0.00

6/30/2010 21,971.00$        21,971.00$        $0.00

6/30/2009 50,848.00$        50,848.00$        $0.00

6/30/2008 120,108.59$     120,108.59$     $0.00

6/30/2007 65,900.00$        65,900.00$        $0.00



      ANNUAL SEWER CONNECTION CHARGE REPORT
                 Montara Water and Sanitary District

       June 30, 2018

The District, in compliance with Section 66013 of the Government Code in reviewing

the water and sewer connection charges and fees, finds as follows: 

Connection

Connection Fees Spent

Year Fees on Capital Remaining

Ending Collected Projects Balance

6/30/2018 229,263.00$     229,263.00$     $0.00

6/30/2017 175,830.00$     175,830.00$     $0.00

6/30/2016 100,597.00$     100,597.00$     $0.00

6/30/2015 166,355.00$     166,355.00$     $0.00

6/30/2014 66,970.00$        66,970.00$        $0.00

6/30/2013 36,325.00$        36,325.00$        $0.00

6/30/2012 43,468.00$        43,468.00$        $0.00

6/30/2011 6,519.28$          6,519.28$          $0.00

6/30/2010 49,516.00$        49,516.00$        $0.00

6/30/2009 102,628.00$     102,628.00$     $0.00

6/30/2008 153,929.00$     153,929.00$     $0.00

6/30/2007 295,901.00$     295,901.00$     $0.00



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  January 17, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

  

SUBJECT:   Review of Half Moon Bay Terrace Groundwater 

Basin SGMA Prioritization  

 

In the spring of 2018, the Department of Water Resources (DWR) released their 
statewide draft updated groundwater basin priorities list for public review and 
comment.  These priorities feed into meeting the Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act (SGMA) requirements through the formation of Sustainable 
Groundwater Agencies (SGAs) for high-priority ranked basins.  MWSD’s wells and 
service area are partially within the DWR-defined Half Moon Bay Terrace (HMBT) 
basin.  HMBT basin had been assigned a “very low” priority in 2014 when DWR 
first developed the implementation plan for SGMA.   
 
In 2018, DWR proposed changing the priority of the HMBT basin from “very low” 
to “very high.”  This would have triggered a requirement that all groundwater users 
in the basin, including MWSD, to form an SGA and prepare a sustainable 
groundwater management plan by 2022.  This process would require extensive 
resources from all users; likely in the range of hundreds of thousands of dollars to 
over a million from MWSD alone.  
 
MWSD staff, including the District's Water Engineer participated in several 
meetings with the County, DWR, and other stakeholders to gather information 
about the draft prioritization and discuss approaches to commenting.  District 
Engineer researched the sources of information that DWR used to calculate the 
prioritization score for HMBT and discovered inaccurate data in their records.  The 
main reason that the HMBT basin priority was changed from “very low” to “very 
high” was that the total groundwater usage was newly estimated to be above 2,000 
acre-feet per year.  Below that threshold, a basin is automatically assigned “very 
low” priority.  
 
After identifying that inaccurate production data was used by DWR, staff wrote the 
comment letter, providing the accurate data and the justification for changing the 
annual production estimate for the HMBT basin.  District Engineer maintains 
historic production data records for all of MWSD's sources.  District submitted the 
letter on August 20, 2018.  On January 2, 2019 DWR announced that the priority 
of the HMBT basin had been revised to “very low” in the final determination by the 
state.  The reason for the re-prioritization was that the total estimated groundwater 
use in the basin was adjusted downward, to below 2,000 acre-feet per year, 
resulting in an automatic “very low” priority ranking. 



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  January 17, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 
 
A copy of the MWSD's letter to DWR is attached for your reference. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

This is for Board information only 
 
 









M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  January 17, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager  

  

SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning 
Nomination of Representative for ACWA Region 
5 Board. 

 

The Region 5 Nominating Committee is looking for members who are interested 
in leading the direction of ACWA Region 5 for the remainder of the 2018-2019 
term.  The Nominating Committee is currently seeking candidates for the Region 
5 Board, which is comprised of Chair, Vice Chair and up to five Board Member 
positions.   
 
The leadership of ACWA’s ten geographical Regions is integral to the leadership 
of the Association as a whole.  The Chair and Vice Chair of Region 5 serve on 
ACWA’s Statewide Board of Directors and recommend all committee 
appointments for Region 5.  Members of the Region 5 Board determine the 
direction and focus of region issues and activities.  Additionally, they support the 
fulfillment of ACWA’s goals.   
 
Director Ric Lohman has served for more than a decade in public functions 
related to Special Districts and wishes to serve on the ACWA Region 5 Board.  A 
resolution is required by ACWA from the governing board nominating one of its 
board members.  Nominations must be received by February 15, 2019. The 
Region 5 Nominating Committee will announce their appointment shortly 
thereafter. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adopt R E S O L U T I O N  N O. _______________, A RESOLUTION OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT PLACING IN NOMINATION RIC LOHMAN AS A MEMBER OF THE 
ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES REGION 5 BOARD 
MEMBER. 
 
Attachment 
 



  RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICT 
PLACING IN NOMINATION RIC LOHMAN AS A MEMBER OF THE 

ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES 
REGION 5 BOARD MEMBER 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Montara Water and Sanitary District 
does encourage and support the participation of its members in the affairs of the 
Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA); 
 
WHEREAS, Ric Lohman has indicated a desire to serve as a Board Member of 
ACWA Region 5; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF THE MONTARA 
WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICT, A PUBLIC AGENCY IN THE COUNTY OF 
SAN MATEO, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
  1. Does place its full and unreserved support in the nomination 
of Ric Lohman for the position of Board Member of ACWA Region 5. 
  2. Does hereby determine that the expenses attendant with the 
service of Ric Lohman in ACWA Region 5 shall be borne by the Montara Water 
and Sanitary District. 
 
           ______________________________________ 
              President, Montara Water and Sanitary District 
    
COUNTERSIGNED: 
 
______________________________________ 
Secretary, Montara Water and Sanitary District 
 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. ________ was duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of the Montara Water and Sanitary 
District, San Mateo County, California, at a meeting thereof on the 17th day of 
January, 2019 by the following vote: 
 
AYES, Directors: 
 
NOES, Directors: 
 
ABSENT, Directors: 
 

     _____________________________________ 
     Secretary, Montara Water and Sanitary District 



 

 

Region 5  

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date: December 12, 2018  
 
To: ACWA Region 5 Member Agency Presidents and General Managers 
 (sent via e-mail) 
 
From: ACWA Region 5 Board  
 
The Region 5 Board is looking for ACWA members who are interested in leading 
the direction of ACWA Region 5 for the remainder of the 2018-2019 term. The 
Board is seeking candidates to fill one Board Member vacancy.   
 
The leadership of ACWA’s ten geographical regions is integral to the leadership 
of the Association as a whole. The Chair and Vice Chair of Region 5 serve on 
ACWA’s Statewide Board of Directors and recommend all committee 
appointments for Region 5. The members of the Region 5 Board determine the 
direction and focus of region issues and activities. Additionally, they support the 
fulfillment of ACWA’s goals on behalf of members.  
 
If you, or someone within your agency, are interested in serving in a leadership 
role within ACWA by becoming a Region 5 Board Member, please familiarize 
yourself with the Role of the Regions and Responsibilities; and the Region 5 
Rules and Regulations (attached) and complete the following steps:   
 
 Complete the attached Nomination Form 
 Obtain a Resolution of support from your agency’s Board of Directors  
 Submit the requested information to ACWA by February 15, 2019 

 
The Region 5 Board will make their appointment shortly thereafter and will inform the 
region of the results. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact ACWA Regional Affairs Representative 
Brian Sanders at brians@acwa.com, or Regional and Member Services Specialist II 
Ana Javaid at anaj@acwa.com, or call (916) 441-4545.  
 

mailto:brians@acwa.com
mailto:anaj@acwa.com


 

 

THE ROLE OF THE REGIONS 
  
Mission:  
ACWA Regions will provide the grassroots support to advance ACWA's legislative and 
regulatory agenda. 

 
Background: 
As a result of ACWA's 1993 strategic planning process, known as Vision 2000, ACWA 
modified its governance structure from one that was based on sections to a 
regional-based configuration. Ten regions were established to provide geographic 
balance and to group agencies with similar interests. 
 
The primary charge of regions: 
 To provide a structure where agencies can come together and discuss / resolve 

issues of mutual concern and interest and based on that interaction, provide 
representative input to the ACWA board. 

 To assist the Outreach Task Force in building local grassroots support for the 
ACWA Outreach Program in order to advance ACWA's legislative and regulatory 
priorities as determined by the ACWA Board and the State Legislative, Federal 
Affairs or other policy committees. 

 To provide a forum to educate region members on ACWA's priorities and issues 
of local and statewide concern. 

 To assist staff with association membership recruitment at the regional level. 
 To recommend specific actions to the ACWA Board on local, regional, state and 

federal issues as well as to recommend endorsement for various government 
offices and positions. 

o Individual region boards CANNOT take positions, action or disseminate 
communication on issues and endorsements without going through the 
ACWA Board structure. 

 
Region chairs and vice chairs, with support from their region boards, provide the 
regional leadership to fulfill this charge.  
 

GENERAL DUTIES / RESPONSIBILITIES FOR REGION OFFICERS 
 

Region Chair: 
 Serves as a member of the ACWA Board of Directors at bimonthly meetings at 

such times and places as the Board may determine. The Chair will also call at 
least two Region membership meetings to be held at each of the ACWA 
Conferences and periodic Region Board meetings. 

 Is a member of ACWA's Outreach Program, and encourages region involvement. 



 

 

o Appoints Outreach Captain to help lead outreach effort within the region. 
 Presides over all region activities and ensures that such activities promote and 

support accomplishment of ACWA's Goals. 
 Makes joint recommendations to the ACWA President regarding regional 

appointments to all ACWA committees. 
 Appoints representatives in concurrence of the region board, to serve on the 

region's nominating committee with the approval of the region board. 
 Facilitates communication from the region board and the region membership to 

the ACWA board and staff. 
 
Region Vice Chair: 
 Serves as a member of the ACWA Board of Directors at bimonthly meetings at 

such times and places as the Board may determine. The Vice Chair will also 
participate in at least two Region membership meetings to be held at each of the 
ACWA Conferences and periodic Region Board meetings. 

 In the absence of the chair and in partnership with the chair, exercises the 
powers and performs duties of the region chair. 

 Is a member of ACWA's Outreach Program, and encourages region involvement. 
 Makes joint recommendations to the ACWA president regarding regional 

appointments to all ACWA committees. 
 
Region Board Member: 
 May serve as alternate for the chair and/or vice chair in their absence (if 

appointed) to represent the region to the ACWA Board. 
 Will participate in at least two Region membership meetings to be held at each 

of the ACWA Conferences and periodic Region Board meetings. 
 Supports program planning and activities for the region. 
 Actively participates and encourages region involvement in ACWA's Outreach 

Program. 



 

 
ACWA Region 5 

Rules & Regulations 
 

Each region shall organize and adopt rules and regulations for the conduct of its meetings and affairs not 
inconsistent with the Articles of Incorporation or bylaws of the Association (ACWA Bylaw V, 6.). 
 
Officers 
Region officers must be a local agency board member. 
The chair shall appoint a secretary to the Board if one is deemed necessary. 
 
Attendance 
 If a region chair or vice chair is no longer allowed to serve on the Board of Directors due to his / her 
attendance, the region board shall appoint from the existing region board a new region officer. (ACWA 
Policy & Guideline Q, 1.) 
 
If a region chair or vice chair misses three consecutive region board / membership meetings, the same 
process shall be used to backfill the region officer position. (ACWA Policy & Guideline Q, 1.) 
 
If a region board member has three consecutive unexcused absences from a region board meeting or 
general membership business meeting, the region board will convene to discuss options for removal of 
the inactive board member. If the vacancy causes the board to fail to meet the minimum requirement of 
five board members, the region must fill the vacancy according to its rules and regulations. (ACWA 
Policy & Guideline Q, 3.) 
 
Vacancy 
The vice chair position shall automatically ascend to the chair position in the event that a vacancy occurs 
in the chair position during the regular term cycle. 
 
Elections 
All nominations received for the region chair, vice chair and board positions must be accompanied by a 
resolution of support from each sponsoring member agency, signed by an authorized representative of 
the Board of Directors. Only one individual may be nominated from a given agency to run for election to 
a region board. Agencies with representatives serving on the nominating committees should strive not 
to submit nominations for the region board from their agency. (ACWA Policy & Guideline P, 2.) 
Election ballots will be e-mailed to ACWA member agency general managers and presidents. 
 
The nominating committee shall consist of three to five members. 
 
In an effort to preserve objectivity during the nominating committee process, candidates other than 
nominating committee members shall be nominated for election. 
 
The nominating committee should pursue qualified members within the region to run for the region 
board, and should consider geographic diversity, agency size and focus in selecting a slate. 
 
See the current region election timeline for specific dates. 



 

 
Endorsements 
ACWA, as a statewide organization, may endorse potential nominees and nominees for appointment to 
local, regional, and statewide commissions and boards. ACWA’s regions may submit a recommendation 
for consideration and action to the ACWA Board of Directors to endorse a potential nominee or 
nominee for appointment to a local, regional or statewide commission or board. (ACWA Policy & 
Guideline P, 3.) 
 
Committee Recommendations & Representation 
All regions are given equal opportunity to recommend representatives of the region for appointment to 
a standing or regular committee of the Association. If a region fails to provide full representation on all 
ACWA committees, those committee slots will be left open for the remainder of the term or until such 
time as the region designates a representative to complete the remainder of the term. (ACWA Policy & 
Guideline P, 4. A.) 
 
At the first region board / membership meeting of the term, regions shall designate a representative 
serving on each of the standing and regular committees to serve as the official reporter to and from the 
committee on behalf of the region to facilitate input and communication. (ACWA Policy & Guideline P, 4. 
B.) 
 
Tours 
ACWA may develop and conduct various tours for the regions. All tour attendees must sign a “release 
and waiver” to attend any and all region tours. Attendees agree to follow environmental guidelines and 
regulations in accordance with direction from ACWA staff; and will respect the rights and privacy of 
other attendees. (ACWA Policy & Guideline P, 6.) 
 
Finances 
See “Financial Guidelines for ACWA Region Events” document. 
 
Amending the Region Rules & Regulations 
ACWA policies and guidelines can be amended by approval of the ACWA Board of Directors. 
The Region 5 Rules & Regulations can be amended by a majority vote of those present at any Region 5 
meeting as long as a quorum is present. 
 



Name of Candidate:  _________________________________________________________________________________

Agency:  ____________________________________________  Title: ________________________________________

Agency Phone: _______________________________________   Direct Phone: _________________________________

E-mail: _________________________________   ACWA Region:_______ County:  _______________________________

Address:  __________________________________________________________________________________________

Agency Function(s): (check all that apply)

   Wholesale   Sewage Treatment   Flood Control 
   Urban Water Supply   Retailer   Groundwater Management / Replenishment
   Ag Water Supply   Wastewater Reclamation   Other:       

Describe your ACWA-related activities that help qualify you for this office:

In the space provided, please write or attach a brief, half-page bio summarizing the experience and 
qualifications that make you a viable candidate for ACWA Region leadership. Please include the number of 
years you have served in your current agency position, the number of years you have been involved in water 
issues and in what capacity you have been involved in the water community.

I acknowledge that the role of a region board member is to actively participate on the Region Board during my term, including 
attending region board and membership meetings, participating on region conference calls, participating in ACWA’s Outreach 
Program, as well as other ACWA functions to set an example of commitment to the region and the association. 

I hereby submit my name for consideration by the Nominating Committee.  
(Please attach a copy of your agency’s resolution of support/sponsorship for your candidacy.)

___________________________________   __________________________________   ________________________
 Signature Title Date

Submit completed form to Ana Javaid at anaj@acwa.com.

REGION BOARD CANDIDATE 
NOMINATION FORM



 

 
April 2017 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
(DISTRICT NAME) 

PLACING IN NOMINATION (NOMINEE NAME) 
AS A MEMBER OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES 

REGION ___ (POSITION) 
 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF (DISTRICT NAME) AS FOLLOWS: 
 
A. URecitals 
 

(i) The Board of Directors (Board) of the (District Name) does encourage and support the 
participation of its members in the affairs of the Association of California Water Agencies 
(ACWA). 

 
(ii) (Nominee Title), (Nominee Name) is currently serving as (Position) for ACWA Region ___ 

 
and/or 
 

(iii)  (Nominee Name) has indicated a desire to serve as a (Position) of ACWA Region ____. 
 
B. UResolves 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF (DISTRICT NAME), 
 

(i) Does place its full and unreserved support in the nomination of (Nominee Name) for the 
(Position) of ACWA Region ____. 

 
(ii) Does hereby determine that the expenses attendant with the service of (Nominee Name) 
in ACWA Region ____ shall be borne by the (District Name). 

 
Adopted and approved this ____ day of ____ (month) 2018. 
 
 
 
         ___________________________ 
  (Nominee Name), (Title) 
 (SEAL) (District Name) 
 
 



 

 
April 2017 

 
 

 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
(Secretary Name), Secretary 
 
 
 

I, (SECRETARY NAME), Secretary to the Board of Directors of (District Name), hereby certify that 
the foregoing Resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of said District, 
held on the ____ day of ____ (month) 2018, and was adopted at that meeting by the following role call 
vote: 
 

AYES: 
 

NOES: 
 

ABSENT: 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
(Secretary Name), Secretary to the 
Board of Directors of 
(District Name) 
 


	Agenda011719
	Public Hearing 1
	Prop 218 Waste Hearing
	SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning Establishment of Prop 218 Limits for Solid Waste Disposal Fee Increase.

	MWSDord___Prop218SolidWsteMaxRates2019
	PRINT Montara 4pg 218 11_16_18 (1)
	MWSD 2018 AUP Recology Report

	Public Hearing 2
	MFS Revision
	SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning Adoption of a Revised Master Fee Schedule to amend Solid Waste Disposal Fees.

	MFSEffective010119[011719]
	NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINing-MFS
	TIME: 7:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as the matter may be            considered


	Consent 1
	Consent 2
	1-03-19 Board Meeting - MWSD Executive Summary
	Budget vs Actual - Water - November 2018
	Budget vs Actual - Sewer - November 2018
	November 2018 yearly activity analysis
	Fundsfix Balance Sheet - November 2018

	Consent 4
	Flow Report
	SAM Attachment

	Consent 5
	Investments
	SUBJECT:   Review of Current Investment Portfolio


	Consent 6
	Consent 7
	Consent 7_10-5-17.pdf
	Consent 7_2-2-17.pdf
	Consent 7
	SUBJECT:   Monthly Water Production Report



	ADP29EC.tmp
	Chart1

	ADPF8A4.tmp
	Chart2


	Consent 8
	Consent 8
	SUBJECT:   Rain Report


	Consent 9
	Consent 9
	SUBJECT:   Monthly Solar Energy Report

	ADP23A0.tmp
	Chart2


	Consent 10
	Staff Report - PARS statement
	PARS_Oct_2018
	October 2018 PARS statement detail

	New Business 1
	Confirming Election Results
	SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning Certification of the Results of the November 6, 2018 Statewide General Election

	Election Results 2018 Attachment

	New Business 2
	Swearing In
	SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning the Administration of the Oath of Office to the Newly Elected Board Members.

	Oath

	New Business 3
	election of officers
	SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning Appointment of Board Officers and Committee Assignments for 2019

	Appointment of Officers 2018-2019_Chart

	New Business 4
	Fire Flows Gregg
	SUBJECT:   Review and Response to Resident Questions about Fire Flow.

	Gregg Attachment

	New Business 5
	connection charge report
	SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning Adoption of Connection Charge Report

	AB 1760

	New Business 6
	SGMA
	SUBJECT:   Review of Half Moon Bay Terrace Groundwater Basin SGMA Prioritization

	MWSD August 20 Letter to DWR SGMA comments

	New Business 7
	ACWA Seat
	SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning Nomination of Representative for ACWA Region 5 Board.

	acwa resolution
	Region 5 Call for Candidates_Packet_12-12-18


	Title: 
	Agency Phone: 
	Direct Phone: 
	ACWA Region: 
	undefined: 
	County: 
	email: 
	undefined_2: 
	Address: 
	Wholesale: Off
	Urban Water Supply: Off
	Ag Water Supply: Off
	Sewage Treatment: Off
	Retailer: Off
	Wastewater Reclamation: Off
	Flood Control: Off
	Groundwater Management  Replenishment: Off
	Other: Off
	undefined_3: 
	Describe your ACWArelated activities that help qualify you for this office 1: 
	Describe your ACWArelated activities that help qualify you for this office 2: 
	Describe your ACWArelated activities that help qualify you for this office 3: 
	issues and in what capacity you have been involved in the water community 1: 
	issues and in what capacity you have been involved in the water community 2: 
	issues and in what capacity you have been involved in the water community 3: 
	issues and in what capacity you have been involved in the water community 4: 
	issues and in what capacity you have been involved in the water community 5: 
	Title_2: 
	Date: 
	submit: 


